
Agenda for a meeting of the Governance and Audit 
Committee to be held on Thursday, 25 January 2018 at 
10.00 am in Committee Room 3 - City Hall, Bradford
Members of the Committee – Councillors

CONSERVATIVE LABOUR LIBERAL DEMOCRAT AND 
INDEPENDENT

M Pollard Johnson
Thornton
Swallow

Reid

Alternates:

Notes:
 This agenda can be made available in Braille, large print or tape format on request by 

contacting the Agenda contact shown below.
 The taking of photographs, filming and sound recording of the meeting is allowed except if 

Councillors vote to exclude the public to discuss confidential matters covered by Schedule 12A 
of the Local Government Act 1972. Recording activity should be respectful to the conduct of 
the meeting and behaviour that disrupts the meeting (such as oral commentary) will not be 
permitted. Anyone attending the meeting who wishes to record or film the meeting's 
proceedings is advised to liaise with the Agenda Contact who will provide guidance and ensure 
that any necessary arrangements are in place. Those present who are invited to make spoken 
contributions to the meeting should be aware that they may be filmed or sound recorded.

 If any further information is required about any item on this agenda, please contact the officer 
named at the foot of that agenda item.

From: To:
Parveen Akhtar
City Solicitor
Agenda Contact: Fatima Butt - 01274 432227
Phone: 01274 432227
E-Mail: fatima.butt@bradford.gov.uk

CONSERVATIVE LABOUR LIBERAL DEMOCRAT AND 
INDEPENDENT

Ellis Farley
Watson

J Sunderland

Public Document Pack



A. PROCEDURAL ITEMS

1.  ALTERNATE MEMBERS  (Standing Order 34)

The City Solicitor will report the names of alternate Members who are 
attending the meeting in place of appointed Members.  

2.  DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST

(Members Code of Conduct - Part 4A of the Constitution)

To receive disclosures of interests from members and co-opted 
members on matters to be considered at the meeting. The disclosure 
must include the nature of the interest.

An interest must also be disclosed in the meeting when it becomes 
apparent to the member during the meeting.

Notes:

(1) Members may remain in the meeting and take part fully in 
discussion and voting unless the interest is a disclosable 
pecuniary interest or an interest which the Member feels would 
call into question their compliance with the wider principles set 
out in the Code of Conduct.  Disclosable pecuniary interests 
relate to the Member concerned or their spouse/partner.

(2) Members in arrears of Council Tax by more than two months 
must not vote in decisions on, or which might affect, budget 
calculations, and must disclose at the meeting that this 
restriction applies to them.  A failure to comply with these 
requirements is a criminal offence under section 106 of the 
Local Government Finance Act 1992.  

(3) Members are also welcome to disclose interests which are not 
disclosable pecuniary interests but which they consider should 
be made in the interest of clarity.

(4) Officers must disclose interests in accordance with Council 
Standing Order 44.

3.  MINUTES

Recommended –

That the minutes of the meeting held on 30 November 2017 be 
signed as a correct record (previously circulated).

(Fatima Butt – 01274 432227)



4.  INSPECTION OF REPORTS AND BACKGROUND PAPERS

(Access to Information Procedure Rules – Part 3B of the Constitution)

Reports and background papers for agenda items may be inspected by 
contacting the person shown after each agenda item.  Certain reports 
and background papers may be restricted.  

Any request to remove the restriction on a report or background paper 
should be made to the relevant Strategic Director or Assistant Director 
whose name is shown on the front page of the report.  

If that request is refused, there is a right of appeal to this meeting.  

Please contact the officer shown below in advance of the meeting if 
you wish to appeal.  

(Fatima Butt - 01274 432227)

B. BUSINESS ITEMS

5.  REGULATION OF INVESTIGATORY POWERS ACT 2000 (RIPA) - 
LEVEL OF USE (QUARTERLY REVIEW)

Previous Reference: Minute 7 (2017/18)

The City Solicitor will submit Document “U” which provides 
information relating to:

 The number of authorised and approved covert surveillance 
operations by the Council for the periods 1st April to 30th June, 
1st July to 30th September and 1st October to 31st December 
2017.

 The Councils uses of covert surveillance by its own officers or 
the use of its CCTV equipment by the Police or Department of 
Work and Pensions must be lawfully authorised.

Recommended-

(1) That the report be noted.

(2) That the Councils continued compliance with RIPA be 
noted.

(Richard Winter – 01274 434292)



6.  WEST YORKSHIRE COMBINED AUTHORITY (WYCA) AND LEEDS 
CITY REGION ENTERPRISE PARTNERSHIP (LEP): UPDATE 
REPORT

Previous Reference: Minute 43 (2016/17)

The Strategic Director, Place will submit Document “V” which 
provides an update on the West Yorkshire Combined Authority and 
Leeds City Region Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) governance, 
reporting and involvement of Bradford Council. Key strategies, plans, 
investment and influence are developed with and through these 
partnership organisations that support key regeneration and transport 
services as well as inclusive economic growth, well-being and 
resilience of Bradford District.

Recommended-

That the report be noted and further updates be submitted to the 
Committee on an exception basis.

(Jamie Saunders – 01274 434123)

7.  MINUTES OF WEST YORKSHIRE PENSION FUND (WYPF) 
PENSION BOARD HELD ON 8 NOVEMBER 2017

The Council’s Financial Regulations require the minutes of meetings of 
the WYPF be submitted to this Committee.

In accordance with the above the Director of West Yorkshire Pension 
Fund will submit Document “W” which reports on the minutes of the 
meeting of the WYPF Pension Board held on 8 November 2017.

Recommended-

That the minutes of the WYPF Pension Board held on 8 November 
2017 be considered.

(Caroline Blackburn – 01274 434523)

8.  BUDGET SAVINGS TO BE ACHIEVED IN LEGAL AND 
DEMOCRATIC SERVICES IN 2018/19 - PROPOSED CHANGES TO 
THE CONSTITUTION

The City Solicitor will submit Document “X” which provides Members 
with details of changes that could be made to the Constitution, by 
combining the Regeneration and Economy and Environment and 
Waste Management Overview and Scrutiny Committees, for 
recommendation to Council if approved.  The changes arise from the 
need to make savings in the budget of Legal and Democratic Services 
for 2018/19.



Recommended-

That the Committee consider the suggested changes to the 
Constitution as described in the report. If the Committee wish to 
recommend adoption of the merger of the Committees it will form 
a recommendation to Council as an amendment to the 
Constitution.

(Michael Bowness – 01274 435928)

9.  EXTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT

The External Auditor will submit Document “Y” which reports that 
External Audit have starting planning the 2017/18 audit of the City of 
Bradford Metropolitan District Council.
The Auditor will present the Audit Strategy Memorandum to the March 
2018 meeting of the Committee. This will set out the significant risks 
that have been identified for the audit of the Council’s statement of 
accounts and the value for money conclusion and the wider approach 
to the audit. 
As part of the audit, External Audit need to understand how the 
Governance and Audit Committee, as those charged with governance, 
gains assurance over management processes and arrangements:

 to prevent and detect fraud; and

 to comply with applicable law and regulations.
In the progress report, External Audit ask some questions about these 
arrangements and request if the Committee could provide a response 
by the end of March 2018. 
The report also highlights the 2017/18 ‘Financial Reporting Workshops’ 
and emerging issues and developments which may be of interest to 
Members of the Committee.

Recommended-

(1) That the External Audit Progress Report (Document “Y”) be 
considered.

(2) That a response is provided to External Audit by the end of 
March 2018 to questions about arrangements to prevent 
and detect fraud to comply with applicable law and 
regulations.

(Mark Dalton – 0113 387 8735)



10.  CERTIFICATION OF GRANTS REPORT 2016/17

The External Audit Letter (Document “Z”) summarises the results of 
the External Auditor’s certification work on grant claims and returns 
within the Public Sector Audit Appointment’s grant regime for 2016/17.

Recommended-

That the results of the certification work on grant claims for 
2016/17 be considered.

(Mark Dalton – 0113 387 8735)

11.  ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2016/17

Previous Reference: Minute 9 (2017/18)

The Director of Finance will submit Document “AA” which updates 
Members on the progress and improvements being made in 
addressing those significant governance concerns reported in the 
Council’s Annual Governance Statement 2016/17.

Recommended-

(1) That the information contained in Document “AA” and the 
progress made in addressing the significant governance 
challenges be reviewed.

(2) That the further actions planned be endorsed.

(3) That officers and Members be alerted to any emerging 
governance concerns requiring review during the 2017-18 
process.

(Mark St Romaine – 01274 432800)

12.  INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2017/18 - UPDATE ON COMPLETION OF 
INTERNAL AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS

Previous Reference: Minute 30 (2017/18)

Members are reminded that this Committee at its meeting held on 30 
November 2017 considered a report (Document “S”) which detailed the 
progress made by Internal Audit against the Internal Audit Plan for 
2017/18.



Strong concerns were expressed on the outstanding completion of 
internal audit recommendations and the Committee resolved:

That the Strategic Director, Corporate Services reports the concerns 
highlighted by this Committee in relation to the completion of Internal 
Audit Recommendations relating to Children’s Services and Health and 
Wellbeing to the Corporate Management Team and that an update on 
the issue be provided to the Committee at its meeting in January 2018.

In accordance with the above a verbal update will be provided to the 
Committee.

(Mark St Romaine – 01274 432800)

THIS AGENDA AND ACCOMPANYING DOCUMENTS HAVE BEEN PRODUCED, WHEREVER POSSIBLE, ON RECYCLED PAPER



This page is intentionally left blank



 

1 

 
 

Report of the City Solicitor to the meeting of the Governance and Audit Committee 
to be held on 25th January 2018 (10.00) 
 
 

            U 
Subject:  Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 (RIPA) – Level of use (quarterly 
reviews) 
 
Decision of the Governance and Audit Committee held in June 2017: 
 
REGULATION OF INVESTIGATORY POWERS ACT 2000 (RIPA) –  
POLICY, USE AND ENFORCEMENT ACTIVITY – ANNUAL REVIEW  
 

Resolved- 
 
(1) That the duties placed on the Council under the Human Rights Act 1998 are 

considered in the context of the report and the Council’s continued 
compliance with RIPA be noted. 

 
(2) That the implementation of the OSC (Office of Surveillance Commissioners) 

recommendations following the inspection in October 2016 is completed 
alongside those outstanding from the 2013 recommendations (paragraphs 3.3 
and 3.4 detailed in Document “D”) 

 
(3) That the 2017/18 programme of training of Officers (in order to update 

Strategic Directors to raise awareness) and enforcement officers under RIPA 
be noted. 

 
(4) That reports on use or none use of covert surveillance techniques be 

presented to the Committee quarterly.  
 
Action: City Solicitor 
   

 
 

 

City Solicitor 
Parveen Ahktar 

 

Report Contact:  R J Winter – Senior Lawyer 
Interim Team Leader Property Commercial and 
Development 
RIPA Coordinator and Monitoring Officer (RiCMO) 
Phone:  01274 434292 
Email:    richard.winter@bradford.gov.uk 

 

Page 1

Agenda Item 5/

mailto:richard.winter@bradford.gov.uk


 

2 

 
 

 
1 Summary. 
 
This report is prepared to provide information relating to the resolutions above and in 
particular:-  
 
1.1 The number of authorised and approved covert surveillance operations by the 

Council for the periods 1st April to 30th June, 1st July to 30th September and 1st 
October to 31st December 2017. 

 
1.2 The Councils uses of covert surveillance by its own officers or the use of its CCTV 

equipment by the Police or Department of Work and Pensions must be lawfully 
authorised. 

 
NB See Glossary at the APPENDIX below. 

 
2 The Council’s use of authorised and approved covert surveillance operations 

for the periods above. 
 

2.1 The Councils Departments which have specific statutory powers to investigate 
criminal offences are as follows:-                   

(a) Neighbourhood and Customer Services (NH&CS). 
(b) Environmental Health Service (EHS) 
(c) West Yorkshire Trading Standards Service (WYTSS). 
(d) Counter Fraud Team (CFT). 
(e) Planning Service and Building Control (PS&BC). 
(f) Housing Standards Service (HSS) 
(g) Antisocial Behaviour Team and Youth Offending Team (ASBT & YOT). 
(h) Licensing Services ( Liquor and taxi etc) (LS) 

 

2.2 The Councils Departments which investigate breaches of employee discipline which 
may result in the detection of serious criminal offences are as follows:- 

(a) Adult Social Care. (ASC) 
(b) Children’s Social Care (CSC) 
(c) Corporate services (CS). 
(d) Department of Place( DP) 
(e) Office of the Chief Executive. (CX) 

 

2.3  The returns for Quarter 1 (1st April to 30th June) and Quarter 2 (1st July to 30th Sept.) 
and Quarter3 (1st October to 31st December 2017) are set out in the table below. A 
NIL RETURN is shown for all relevant departments indicate that the services 
investigators are able to obtain evidence without the need for covert surveillance. 
Where not applicable appears (N/A) the criminal offences investigated by the service 
do not fall within the definition of serious criminal offence under RIPA 2000 namely 
carrying a penalty of more than six months imprisonment. 

 
 
 
 

Page 2



 

3 

 
Department/ 
Quarterly 
period 
(QTR) 

EHS 
 

WYTSS CFT PS&
BC 

HSS ASBT & 

YOT&N
H&CS 
 

LS  Refusals Authorisations/
Approvals 

QTR 1 0 0 0 n/a n/a n/a n/a 0 0 

QTR2 0 0 0 n/a n/a n/a n/a 0 0 

QTR3 0 0 0 n/a n/a n/a n/a   

Dept. 
Quarterly 
period 
(QTR) 

ASC CSC CS DP CX   Refusals Authorisations/
Approvals 

QTR 1 0 0 0 0 0   0 0 

QTR 2 0 0 0 0 0   0 0 

QTR 3 0 0 0 0 0     

 

2.4 The Council’s CCTV system and use of it for covert surveillance by the Police and 
DWP. 

 
a) The Council owns a substantial CCTV system which assists in the prevention and 

detection of crime within the City Centre and is occasionally used by the Police and 
Department of Work and Pensions (DWP). 

 
b) The table below shows comparative figures for QTR 1 QTR 2 and QTR3. 

 

Quarterly 
Period 
(QTR) 

Police DWP Refusals Accepted Total 
Operations 

QTR1 6 0 0 6 6 

QTR 2 1 1 0 2 1 

QTR3 1 2 0 3 3 

 

3 FINANCIAL & RESOURCE APPRAISAL 
 
There are no financial implications arising from a resolution adopting the recommendations of this 
report.  
 

4 RISK MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE ISSUES 
 
The report is intended to audit potential risks of unauthorised covert surveillance by officers of the 
Council without authorisation and approval. 
 

5 EQUALITY & DIVERSITY 
 
There are no equality impact or diversity implications as a result of a resolution adopting the 
recommendations of this report 
 

6 SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
There are no sustainability implications as a result of a resolution adopting the recommendations 
of this report. 
 

Page 3



 

4 

7 GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS IMPACTS 
 
There are no greenhouse gas emission impacts as a result of a resolution adopting the 
recommendations of this report 
 

8 COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 
 
There is no community safety implications as a result of a resolution adopting the 
recommendations of this report as investigation into crime in the Councils district will continue by 
the police. The Councils Enforcement teams will continuer to undertake investigations of criminal 
offences overtly. 
 

9 TRADE UNION 
 
There are no trade union implications as a result of a resolution adopting the recommendations of 
this report 
 

10 WARD IMPLICATIONS 
 
There are no ward implications as a result of a resolution adopting the recommendations of this 
report 
 

11 RECOMMENDATIONS 
  

11.1 That the report be noted. 
 

11.2 That the Councils continued compliance with RIPA be noted. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 4



 

5 

 
 
APPENDIX Glossary of terms and abbreviations  
 
 

Abbreviation title/term Background/definition 

RIPA 2000 Regulation of Investigatory Powers 
Act 

Regulates the use of covert surveillance and data 
communication in respect of private persons. 

SRO Senior Responsible officer Required to take an overview of the Councils use 
of covert surveillance and compliance with RIPA 

CCTV Close circuit television Used for safety and security purposes within 
Council buildings and the city centre 

CS Covert surveillance Surveillance which is carried out in a manner 
calculated to ensure that the persons subject to 
the surveillance are unaware that it is or may be 
taking place. 

DS Directed surveillance Surveillance which is covert, but not intrusive, and 
undertaken: 
 
a) for the purpose of a specific investigation or 

operation; 
 
b) in such a manner as is likely to result in the 

obtaining of private information about a 
person (whether or not that person is the 
target of the investigation or operation); and 

 
c) In a planned manner and not by way of an 

immediate response whereby it would not be 
reasonably practicable to obtain an 
authorisation prior to the surveillance being 
carried out. 

 

CHIS Covert human intelligence source A person is a CHIS if: 
 

(a) s/he establishes or maintains a 
personal or other relationship with a 
person for the covert purpose of 
facilitating the doing of anything 
falling within paragraph (b) or (c); 

 
(b) s/he covertly uses such a 

relationship to obtain information or 
to provide access to any information 
to another person; or 

 
(c) S/he covertly discloses information 

obtained by the use of such a 
relationship, or as a consequence of 
the existence of such a relationship. 

IS Intrusive surveillance Intrusive surveillance is defined as covert 
surveillance that: 

a) is carried out in relation to anything taking 
place on any residential premises or in any 
private vehicle; and 

b) Involves the presence of any individual on the 
premises or in the vehicle or is carried out by 
means of a surveillance device. 

Page 5



 

6 

If the device is not located on the premises or 
in the vehicle, it is not intrusive surveillance 
unless the device consistently provides 
information of the same quality and detail as 
could be expected to be obtained from a 
device actually present on the premises or in 
the vehicle. 

 Private information Includes any information relating to a person’s 
private or family life. 
Private life also includes activities of a  
professional or business nature (Amann v  
Switzerland (2000) 30 ECHR 843). 
“Person” also includes any organisation and any 
association or combination of persons. 

 Confidential material Includes: 
 matters subject to legal privilege; 
 confidential personal information; 
 Confidential journalistic material. 

HRA 1998 Human Rights Act Enacts ECHR into English Law i.e. absolute and 
conditional human rights 

ECHR 1950 European Convention of Human 
Rights 

Sets out absolute and conditional Human Rights 
across Europe 

OSC Office of the surveillance 
commissioner 

Appointed by the government to oversee the 
police and other public bodies use of covert 
surveillance techniques. 

OICC Office of the Interception of 
Communications commissioner 

Appointed by the government to oversee the 
police and other public bodies interception of data 
communications 

NAFN National antifraud Network Joint local authority network for dealing with fraud 
of which the Council is a member 

RiCMO RIPA Coordinator and Monitoring 
Officer 

Lead Officer on RIPA - Advises enforcement 
managers and officers of the RIPA process and 
procedure. Annually reviews and updates all 
relevant Policy and Guidance material and reports 
to CGAC 

SNS Social network sites E.g. Facebook and Twitter 

 
 

Page 6



 

 

 

 
Report of the Strategic Director – Place to the meeting 
of Governance and Audit Committee to be held on 25

th
 

January 2018. 
 
 

            V 
Subject:   
 
West Yorkshire Combined Authority (WYCA) and Leeds City Region Enterprise 
Partnership (LEP): Update Report 
 
 

Summary statement: 
 
This report provides an update on West Yorkshire Combined Authority and Leeds 
City Region Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) governance, reporting and 
involvement of Bradford Council. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Steve Hartley 
Strategic Director - Place 

Portfolio:   
 
Leader 
 
 

Report Contact:   
Jamie Saunders, Policy Officer 
Phone: (01274) 434123 
E-mail: Jamie.saunders@bradford.gov.uk 

 Overview & Scrutiny Area:  
 
Corporate Overview & Scrutiny 

 
 

Page 7

Agenda Item 6/



 

 

1. SUMMARY 
 
This report provides an update on West Yorkshire Combined Authority and Leeds City 
Region Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) governance, reporting and involvement of 
Bradford Council. Key strategies, plans, investment and influence are developed with and 
through these partnership organisations that support key regeneration and transport 
services as well as inclusive economic growth, well-being and resilience of Bradford 
District. 
 

 
2. BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 Bradford Council continues to be a constituent Council – and founding and funding 

local authority - in the West Yorkshire Combined Authority (WYCA), the partnership 
organisation for transport and regeneration across West Yorkshire (WY) and Leeds 
City Region (LCR). A glossary of terms is included in Appendix 1. 
 

2.2 This report is an update to the 28 February 2017 report to Governance and Audit 
Committee. The status of key governance matters and risks relating to WYCA/LEP are 
also currently included in the Council Annual Governance Statement (AGS) and related 
updates. The latest position is included in the parallel AGS Update for this Committee. 

 
2.3 Bradford Council has direct and indirect involvement in the political, strategic and 

operational activities of WYCA and the Leeds City Region Local Economic Partnership 
(LEP). Key nominations and  appointments are made at Full Council. These are 
included in Appendix 2 as part of the overview of elected members involved directly in 
WYCA. As of August 2017, Cllr Susan Hinchcliffe, Leader Bradford Council has been 
the Chair of WYCA and sits on the LEP Board. The Leader as Chair of WYCA is 
committed to progressing :  
 Productivity - a strong, successful economy, driven by ambitious, productive and 

successful businesses that create new sources of wealth and opportunity for 
everyone. 

 Inclusive Growth -  growing a successful economy and our measure of that 
success is an economy from which everyone in the City Region benefits 

 A 21st Century Transport System – with targeted local investment in high quality, 
affordable and flexible transport networks that connect people to jobs and 
opportunity 

 Devolution – negotiate with Government for on-going and further powers and 
resources to invest in prosperity, well-being and resilience. 

 Delivery  - with £100m of Growth Deal investment committed for this year. 
 

2.4 As Leader of Bradford Council, the Leader is also minded that WYCA/LEP – as a local 
authority body and conduit for public funds - needs to a role model for local 
government partnership with robust transparency, openness and accountability. As of 
the WYCA meeting (December 2017), the Leader will also now be a member of the 
WYCA Governance and Audit Committee. 

 

2.5 WYCA work is led by two Boards; the Combined Authority and LEP Board. “The 
Combined Authority make the decisions and inform the policies that drive the shared 

Page 8



 

 

Strategic Economic Plan. The LEP Board brings together business and council leaders 
to ensure that the shared work meets the needs of employers in the region. This 
approach helps to achieve the best outcomes for our region by harnessing private 
sector expertise on what businesses need to grow, and ensuring decisions on public 
sector investment priorities are taken by democratically elected local councillors. The 
Combined Authority’s membership is made up of councillors from the West Yorkshire 
partner councils of Bradford, Calderdale, Kirklees, Leeds and Wakefield, plus York and 
the Chair of the LEP Board”. WYCA corporate priorities (WYCA Corporate Plan 2017-
18) focused on three key themes 2016-17:  

 
• “Development: bringing together the right skills and people, creating a single 
organisational structure to achieve our priorities  
• Delivery: delivering projects and services that support our priorities at an 
unprecedented scale and pace through our £1 billion Growth Deal and £1 billion 
Transport Fund  
• Devolution: securing the further funding and powers to drive prosperity across the 
region, ensuring that everything we do contributes towards inclusive growth 

 
Key Priorities 2017/18 
• Do all that we can to help secure a devolution deal encompassing our  City Region 
• Deliver inclusive growth in all that we do; addressing poverty, social  exclusion and 
inequality 
• Ensure that all of our projects have strong governance and clear,  deliverable plans 
• Strengthen our business growth offer - focusing particularly on innovation,  
productivity and digital 
• Continue our progress towards a more efficient and customer-focused  smart ticketing 
system for our public transport network 
• Develop a clearer, stronger brand identity for the organisation that  supports our 
ambitions of raising the City Region’s profile nationally  and internationally” 
Draft Business Plan with 2018/19 ambitions  tabled with WYCA and LEP Board subject 
to approval at WYCA 1st February 2018 meeting. 

 
2.6 This report highlights the implementation of 

 the new WYCA/LEP governance arrangements approved at WYCA’s annual 
meeting (June 2017), coming into effect from 1 September 2017, and 

 proposed new constitutional arrangements for the LCR LEP (Leeds City Region 
Local Enterprise Partnership), and  

 the work to review and improve the arrangements in terms of their impact on 
transparency and accountability. 

 
2.6 These matters were reported directly to WYCA O&S Committee 3rd January 2018 with 

the Bradford WYCA O&S members present.  
 

 Significant governance changes were implemented in September 2017, when LEP 
Panels were integrated into WYCA as advisory committees (with the Investment 
Panel appointed as an advisory sub-committee to the WY&Y  Investment 
Committee, and now named the Business investment Panel). All of WYCA’s Panels 
and Committees are chaired by LEP Board members, of whom 3 are private sector 

Page 9



 

 

representatives, and through this mechanism report to and remain accountable to 
the LEP Board, as well as WYCA. 

 The current LEP governance structure (with a separate LEP Board, and Panels with 
private sector representatives integrated into WYCA) aim to streamline decision 
making; bring direct private sector involvement in the heart of WYCA decision 
making; dramatically  improve accountability and transparency resulting from 
statutory requirements now applying to individual Panel members (Code of 
Conduct) and Panel meetings (access to information); and enhanced 
communication and links between the LEP Board,  WYCA and LAs/Partners. 

 In relation to transparency, all voting co-opted Member on the Panel, (which 
includes private sector representatives) are now subject to the statutory Code of 
Conduct adopted by WYCA. They complete a detailed register of interests which is 
published on WYCA’s web-site, and are required to declare interests at meetings. A 
breach of the Code is potentially a criminal offence. Currently there are over 30 
private sector representatives who are members of either the LEP Board, a WYCA 
Panel or both, with all but 2 LEP Board members now either a WYCA Member or 
voting co-opted WYCA Member and therefore subject to WYCA’s Members’ Code 
of Conduct. 

 All Panels are now subject to the access to information statutory provisions, 
requiring agenda and reports to be published 5 clear days before a meeting, and 
meetings to be open to the public, subject to exceptions for exempt or confidential 
information 

  
2.8 The governance changes detailed above are the first step in a phased review which 

will consider: 
 membership of WYCA Panels/committees to further embed the public/private 

partnership, 
 the remit and number of WYCA Panels/committees, potentially allocating budgets 

and delivery responsibilities, and 
 any necessary changes further to any agreed move to a Mayoral CA. 

 
2.9 Multiple governance and related  reports were presented to the LEP Board on 16th 

January 2018 including: 
 
 LCR LEP – Revised Constitutional Arrangements (Item 6) 
 LEP Panel Appointments (Item 7 ) 
 LCR Assurance Framework Review, and Cities and Local Growth Unit (CLoG) 

Review of LEPs (Item 8) 
 Risk Management (Item 13) 
 Business Planning and Budget 2018-19 (Item 15) 

 
2.10  Further details on the WYCA Governance and Audit Committee work programme 
and meetings and decisions are included in Appendix 3. 
 
2.11 Bradford Council undertook a first ever Joint Scrutiny of WYCA/LEP 10th October 
2017 (Corporate O&S, Regeneration & Economy O&S and Environment & Waste O&S, 
chaired by Cllr Adrian Farley). This was attended by Cllr Hinchcliffe and by Ben Still, 

Page 10



 

 

Managing Director of WYCA. The decisions as set out in Appendix 4 are being progressed 
in partnership with WYCA. 
 
 
3. OTHER CONSIDERATIONS 
 
3.1 WYCA Business Plan and Budget for 2018-19 were considered at WYCA O&S 3rd 
January 2018, before being presented to WYCA in February 2018. This includes further 
elements of organisational transformation –  “One Organisation Transformation” and 
performance.  The assurance framework and related actions have been agreed with 
Central Government for the Growth Deal and transport delivery, performance and 
management. Issues arising are tracked through regular dialogue and a publicly reported 
set of Key Performance Indicators (KPIs). 
 
3.2 In April 2017, the DCLG asked Mary Ney, a Non-Executive Director on the DCLG 
Board, to review national LEP governance and transparency. The findings of the review 
were published on 26 October. Best practice guidance on a number of issues, including 
conflicts of interest, is to be issued by DCLG further to the Ney report. However, the Ney 
recommendations have already resulted in an increased focus on governance and 
transparency during the 2017 annual performance conversation between WYCA/the LCR 
LEP and the Department for Communities and Local Government (DCLG), (a key element 
of the DCLG’s assurance system for funding to LEPs), which took place on 29 November. 
In particular, WYCA’s Managing Director and the LCR LEP Chair were required to submit 
a formal annual assurance statement prior to the Annual Conversation 2017. A copy of the 
statement was presented to WYCA O&S January 2018. Positive feedback was received 
during the Annual Conversation with Central Government about the continuous 
improvements to transparency and accountability made to date. 
 
3.3 The LCR LEP Board 16 January 2018 considered  revised LCR LEP constitutional 
documents, including LCR LEP Board Procedure Rules, an LCR LEP Board members’ 
Code of Conduct, and an allowances and expenses scheme. These will reflect Ney 
recommendations, as well as updating existing documentation to incorporate 
improvements already made during 2017, such as aligning access to information 
provisions with that of WYCA.  
 
3.4 The LCR LEP Board considered an updated local assurance framework (previously 
considered by Overview and Scrutiny Committee’s working group) which will reflect 
governance changes.  Draft Best practice guidance for LEPs on governance and 
transparency has recently been circulated by Government, and there will be a review of 
the LEP Board constitution and governance documentation & practices accordingly, to 
support LEP Board considerations on 16 January.  
 
3.5 WYCA on the 1st February will adopt the Business Plan and Budget for 2018-19 
including key organisational ambitions and improvement plans including priorities for 

 Streamlined decision making, delegations and compliance on committee agenda 
publication 

 Resource and implement enhanced WYCA procurement strategy 

Page 11



 

 

 Phase 2 of the WYCA One Organisation transformation programme, with specific 
focus on performance management and risk controls 

 Attention on transparency, openness, compliance and customer service 
 
3.6 WYCA also supports the Bradford District Consultation Sub-Committee for member 
and partner involvement in transport strategy and services. 
 

4. FINANCIAL & RESOURCE APPRAISAL 
 
4.1 Bradford Council provides core funding to WYCA/LEP and these contributions are 
actively managed as part of the Council Budge, medium term financial strategy and 
reporting and accounting practices. 
 
4.2 Performance and value for money of  the services partnership and investments 
supported through WYCA/LEP to the District are reported to Bradford’s Overview & 
Scrutiny. The most recent as detailed above at first ever Joint Scrutiny of WYCA/LEP 
(October 2017). Plans are in place for this to be repeated in Autumn 2018. 
 
4.3 Governance and audit policies, practices and performance are integrated into the 
operations of WYCA under the auspices of the Managing Director.  
 
4.4 The WYCA Governance and Audit Committee has a clear work programme and terms 
of reference, the latter last updated at the WYCA AGM 29th June 2017. 
 
4.5 As reported in February 2016, WYCA Internal Audit Reporting flagged Apprenticeship 
Grants for Employers & Skills Capital Funding arrangements as requiring improvement 
from 2016-17. These were covered by WYCA GAC and IA controls through this financial 
year. 
 
Apprenticeship Grants for Employers – Actions to improve processes & procedures, 
assessment of grant applications and ensure compliance with funding agreements in 
place. 
 
Skills Capital Funding - WYCA Document Retention. WYCA should develop and 
communicate a corporate document retention policy – Retention Policy approved (Jan 
2017) 
 
The results of the range of reviews highlighted a number of common themes associated 
with programme and project management arrangements. Consequently, with the 
establishment of the Portfolio Management Office (PMO), WYCA have assurance 
practices and resources in place for assessing the eligibility, development, delivery and 
evaluation of corporate programmes and projects. 
 
4.6 The current Public Sector Internal Audit Standard PSIAS opinion for the WYCA is that 
the framework of governance, risk management and control had operated adequately. The 
Annual Internal Audit Report for WYCA. 
 
4.7 Information concerning the results of internal audits performed in the period from 1 

Page 12



 

 

April 2017 to 30 June 2017 was produced for the August meeting of the WYCA GAC.. 
The Internal Audit Section has undertaken work contained within WYCA’s audit plan 
through the performance and release of the following audit reports; 

 Gifts & Hospitality – Well Controlled 

 Code of Corporate Governance - Controlled 

 Local Transport Plan Programme Management – Controlled 

 HR Data Protection – further response required. 
The Internal Audit Update was considered at the November  WYCA GAC meeting. 
In addition to the completion of scheduled audit reviews provided in paragraph 4.7, a 
number of audit reviews are currently in progress and include;  

 Resource Efficiency Fund  

 Treasury Management  

 English National Concessions Travel Scheme  

 Metro Travel Centres  

 Smart Card Information Programme  

 Tendered Subsidised Bus Contracts  
 
The WYCA Internal Audit Mid Year report was also considered at the November meeting. 
 
4.8 Annual Audit letter from External Audit (Mazars) for the period to the end of 31st March 
2017 concluded (28th August 2017) that 

 WYCA had proper arrangements in place to secure economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in its use of resources 

 the Narrative Report published with the financial statements, is consistent with 
those financial statement 

 the financial statements give a true and fair view of the Combined Authority’s 
financial position as at 31 March 2017 and of its financial performance for the year 
then ended. 

 assurance certificate issued which reported that the Council’s consolidation pack 
was consistent with the audited financial statements (dated 28th September 2017) 

 
 
5. RISK MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE ISSUES 
 
5.1 Key challenges, opportunities and governance issues arising from the involvement and 
partnership working through WYCA/LEP are managed through both direct elected member 
engagement and through the work of Senior Management. 
 
5.2 Partnership working and enhanced collaboration is at the heart of the ambitions of 
WYCA/LEP with their respective local authority and other partners and this includes a 
proportionate and considered approach to risk and governance. As the report sets out 
there are significant and planned improvements to governance and WYCA/LEP 
arrangements expected into 2018-19. Risk Management at WYCA is set out in detail in the 
LEP Board report 16th January 2018. 
 
5.3 Senior Management are also directly involved in WYCA/LEP support and delivery, 
including active dialogue and cooperation with the WYCA Senior Management team and 
Directors. 

Page 13



 

 

 

6. LEGAL APPRAISAL 
 
6.1 WYCA is a Statutory Combined Authority and it is governed and operated on that 
basis. LEPs are more informal strategic business partnerships with a primary focus on 
enterprise, business growth and economic development.  
 
6.2 A range of related functions and arrangements are being progressed by the 
Government. The Cities and Local Government Devolution Act 2016 is one such recent 
change paving the way, as an enabling framework, for local growth, public sector reform 
and administrative changes to powers and resources. The Leeds City Region / One 
Yorkshire devolution proposal and negotiation fits within these changes.  
 
This report does not cover the proposed devolution process for Leeds City Region or 
subnational developments directly at this time. Should the devolution proposals proceed to 
agreement with Government then further information will be brought to the Committee as 
soon as it is available. 
 
7. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
7.1 EQUALITY & DIVERSITY 
 
As a local authority, WYCA manages its own response to equality and diversity. 
 
7.2 SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
WYCA / LEP aims to be a leading organisation in supporting, investing and delivering to 
secure inclusive economic growth, prosperity, well-being and resilience. It is actively 
pursuing an integrated approach to investment, programme management and business 
operations to ensure clear alignment with and support to Bradford District Outcomes and 
long-term ambitions. 
 
7.3 GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS IMPACTS 
 
WYCA/LEP is proactively investing in the Green Economy and in clean energy and energy 
management. It operates and is seeking to advance sound governance and oversight in 
this area to bring robust and evidence based responses to the challenges of global climate 
change and environmental opportunities and threats.   
 
7.4 COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 
 
 None directly arising from this report & its content 
 
7.5 HUMAN RIGHTS ACT 
 
 None arising directly from this report. 
 
7.6 TRADE UNION 

Page 14



 

 

 
 No direct trade  union implications arising from this report. 
 
8. NOT FOR PUBLICATION DOCUMENTS 
 
 None.   
 
 
9. OPTIONS 
 
It is proposed that reporting on WYCA/LEP move to exceptions reporting rather than a 
standing item in the AGS and dedicated report in the GAC Work Programme. 
 
 
10. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

Recommended -  
 
That the report be noted and further updates brought to the Committee on an 
exceptions basis.   

 
 
11. APPENDICES 
 
Appendix 1 Glossary of terms 
 
Appendix 2 Bradford Council Involvement in WYCA/LEP –  

 
2.1 Elected Member nominations and appointments to WYCA/LEP 2017/18  
2.2 WYCA Advisory Panel Appointments 2017/18 
2.3 WYCA involvement in Outside Bodies 2017/18 
 
Appendix 3 WYCA Governance & Audit Committee work programme / meetings 2017-18 
 
Appendix 4 Joint O&S WYCA/LEP Update Decisions, October 2017 
 

Page 15



 

 

12. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
 
WYCA Corporate Plan 2017-18 
WYCA Business Plan 2018-19 DRAFT – subject to approval WYCA February 2018 
WYCA Corporate Governance Overview – via WYCA Website 
 
WYCA Governance and Audit Committee Terms of Reference 
 
WYCA, WYCA O&S Committee and WYCA Governance & Audit Committee papers 
 
WYCA Bradford District Consultation Sub-Committee (Transport focus) papers 
 
WYCA Assurance Framework 2017 
WYCA Internal Audit Annual Report and Opinion 2016/17 
WYCA Internal Audit Action Plan, Updates  
WYCA External Audit Letter 2017 
 
CBMDC Annual Governance Statement 2016-17 and updates 
CBMDC Annual Governance Statement 2017-18 
 

Ney Review, 2017 – Link 
 
LEP Board Reports 16th January 2018 
 

 LCR LEP – Revised Constitutional Arrangements (Item 6) 
 LEP Panel Appointments (Item 7 ) 
 LCR Assurance Framework Review, and Cities and Local Growth Unit (CLoG) 

Review of LEPs (Item 8) 
 Risk Management (Item 13) 
 WYCA - Business Planning and Budget 2018-19 (Item 15) 

 

Page 16



 

 

Appendices 

 
Appendix 1 Glossary of terms 
 
AGS – Annual Governance Statement 
 
CBMDC – City of Bradford Metropolitan District Council  
 
CLoG  (sometimes C&LGU) – Cities and Local Growth Unit, cross departmental 
Government Unit. 
 
DCLG – Department of Communities and Local Government 
 
FoI – Freedom of Information 
 
GAC – Governance & Audit Committee 
 
GD3 – Growth Deal 3 (LCR submitted to Government – August 2016) 
 
KPIs – Key Performance Indicators 
 
LAs – Local Authorities 
 
LCR – Leeds City Region  
 
LEP – Leeds City Region Local Enterprise Partnership 
 
O&S – Overview & Scrutiny 
 
PMO – Portfolio Management Office  
 
REOS – CBMDC Regeneration and Economy Overview & Scrutiny Committee 
 
WYCA – West Yorkshire Combined Authority 
 
 
 
 

Page 17



 

 

Appendix 2 Bradford Council Involvement in WYCA/LEP 
 
 
 
“West Yorkshire Combined Authority is the driving force behind local partners’ collective efforts 
to make West Yorkshire and Leeds City Region known globally as a place where everyone 
can combine economic success with an outstanding quality of life. 
   
Working with local and national partners we are responsible for collective action to achieve our 
vision, focusing on those issues that it makes most sense to address at the city region level. 
 
Made up of Bradford, Calderdale, Kirklees, Leeds, Wakefield and York councils and the Leeds 
City Region Enterprise Partnership (LEP), the Combined Authority is having a big impact. 
   
Our main goal is ‘inclusive growth’. This means ensuring the widest range of people and 
places can benefit from economic prosperity as well as contributing to it. By doing this we can 
make Leeds City Region an even better place to live, work and do business.”  

 
Appendix 2.1 Elected Member involvement – Nominations and Appointments 2017/18 
 
Appendix 2.2 Advisory Panel Appointments 2017/18 
  
Appendix 2.3 WYCA Representation on Outside Bodies 2017/18 
 
 
 

Page 18



 

 

Appendix 3 WYCA Governance  Audit Committee work programme / meetings 2017-
18 
 
Dedicated WYCA pages on the web-site 
Governance - https://www.westyorks-ca.gov.uk/about/governance/  
Finance and accounts - https://www.westyorks-ca.gov.uk/about/finance/  
FoI - https://www.westyorks-ca.gov.uk/what-we-do/foi/ 
Policies and Procedures - https://www.westyorks-ca.gov.uk/Policies_and_procedures/  
 
As part of the WYCA AGM Business 29th June 2017 the following was confirmed for 2017-
18: 
1. Membership of WYCA 
2. Appointment of the Chair and Vice Chair of the WYCA (Lead Officer: Ben Still, Author: 
Angela Taylor) 
7. Revised Committee Arrangements & Appointments (Member lead: Cllr P Box, Author: 
Angela Taylor) 
8. WYCA Representation on Outside Bodies (Member lead: Cllr P Box, Author: Angela 
Taylor) 
9. Officer Scheme of Delegation (Member lead: Cllr P Box, Author: Angela Taylor) 
10. Governance Arrangements (Member lead: Cllr P Box, Author: Angela Taylor) 
11. Code of Corporate Governance (Member lead: Cllr P Box, Author: Angela Taylor) 
12. Members’ Allowances Scheme (Member lead: Cllr P Box, Author: Angela Taylor) 
13. Calendar of Meetings 2017/18 (Member lead: Cllr P Box, Author: Angela Taylor) 
 
The August meeting saw Cllr Susan Hinchcliffe become Chair of WYCA. 
 
The next meeting of the WYCA GAC is scheduled for the 25th January 2018 followed by 
the 29th March. 
 
WYCA GAC 28th November 2017 
4. Minutes of the Meeting of the WYCA GAC held on : 
(a) 6 April 2017 
 (b) 3 August 2017 
5. APPOINTMENT OF DEPUTY CHAIR 
6. TERMS OF REFERENCE AND FORWARD PLAN OF WORK 
7. INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT 
8. INTERNAL AUDIT MID-YEAR REVIEW 
9. EXTERNAL AUDIT REPORT 
10. INTERNAL CONTROLS & FINANCIAL MONITORING 
11. DRAFT RISK MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 
 
WYCA GAC 3rd August 2017 – Main items 
4. Minutes of the Meeting of WYCA GAC held on 6 April 2017   
5. APPOINTMENT OF DEPUTY CHAIR 
6. TERMS OF REFERENCE AND FORWARD PLAN OF WORK 2017-18 
7. ANNUAL INTERNAL AUDIT REPORT AND OPINION 
8. INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT 
9. REVIEW OF INTERNAL CONTROL AND EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL AUDIT 

Page 19

https://www.westyorks-ca.gov.uk/about/governance/
https://www.westyorks-ca.gov.uk/about/finance/
https://www.westyorks-ca.gov.uk/what-we-do/foi/
https://www.westyorks-ca.gov.uk/Policies_and_procedures/


 

 

10. EXTERNAL AUDIT UPDATE 
11. APPROVAL OF ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 2016-17 
12. INTERNAL CONTROLS & FINANCIAL MONITORING 
 
WYCA GAC 6th April 2017 – Main items 
4. Minutes of the Meeting of WYCA GAC held on 1 December 2016  
5. EXTERNAL AUDIT MATTERS  
6. INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT  
7. INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2017/18  
8. INTERNAL CONTROLS & FINANCIAL MONITORING  
 
 
Appendix 4 Decisions from Joint O&S on WYCA/LEP, October 2017 
 
Decisions from Joint O&S on WYCA/LEP, October 2017 
 
Joint O&S resolved – 
  
1.    That the report be welcomed and officers and senior Councillors thanked for their on 
going work in relation to WYCA and LEP. 
  
2.    That a progress report be presented to a further joint meeting in 12 months time which 
also focuses on funded projects in the Bradford district. 
  
3.    That elected members from Bradford who sit on the WYCA Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee and WYCA Transport Committee be requested to attend the relevant Bradford 
Council Overview and Scrutiny Committees to provide feedback on their work. 
  
4.    That the fact that “officers are working to develop a long term strategy for the district” 
in relation to greenhouse gas emissions be welcomed. 
  
5.    That WYCA be requested to develop a process to involve Bradford Ward Members in 
the specification and delivery of projects. 
  
6.    That WYCA be requested to include a description of the community benefit, where 
possible, on the Growth Deal Dashboard included in Document “A”. 
  
7.    That WYCA schemes and objectives are, where possible, aligned with the priorities of 
Bradford Council to achieve the best outcome for raising skills and delivering integrated 
transport schemes. 

Page 20



   As at: 18/12/17                                        West Yorkshire Combined Authority Appointments 2017 / 2018                               
 

West Yorkshire Combined Authority Bradford Calderdale Kirklees Leeds Wakefield York LEP 

        
 
Chair: Susan Hinchcliffe 

 
Deputy Chair: Tim Swift 

Member 
 

Substitute 

Susan Hinchliffe (L) 
 

Imran Khan (L) 

Tim Swift (L) 
 

Barry Collins (L) 

David Sheard (L) 
 

Shabir Pandor (L) 

Judith Blake (L) 
 

James Lewis (L) 

Peter Box (L) 
 

Denise Jeffery (L) 

Andrew Waller (LD) 
 

David Carr (C) 

Roger Marsh 
 

Bob Cryan 

Members appointed to better reflect political 
balance across West Yorkshire: 

Conservative  Lib Dem Conservative    

 Member Simon Cooke  Nicola Turner  Andrew Carter    

 Substitute   
Stewart Golton 

(Leeds) 
Nadeem Ahmed 

(Wakefield) 
   

 

West Yorkshire Combined Authority Committees  
  

 
WYCA Members 

(Voting) 

Bradford 
Co-optees 

(Voting) 

Calderdale 
Co-optees 

(Voting) 

Kirklees 
Co-optees 

(Voting) 

Leeds 
Co-optees 

(Voting) 

Wakefield 
Co-optees 

(Voting) 

York 
Co-optees 

(Voting1) 

Other Co-optees 

         

Governance and Audit 
Roger Marsh 

Andrew Carter (C) 
Susan Hinchcliffe (L) 

Tim Swift (L) 
 
 
 
 
 

Tim Swift (L) 

      Andy Clayton  
(Independent Member) 

 
(Voting) Chair: Roger Marsh       

         

Overview and Scrutiny  Michael Ellis (C) Stephen Baines (C) Andrew Cooper (G) Patrick Davey (L) Graham Isherwood (L) Jenny Brooks (C) 

N/A 

Chair: Robert Light 

N/A Fozia Shaheen (L) James Baker (LD) Paul Kane (L) Kim Groves (L) Margaret Isherwood (L) Sonja Crisp (L) 

 Rosie Watson (L) Dot Foster (L) Robert Light (C) Peter Harrand (C) Elizabeth Rhodes (L) Ian Cuthbertson (LD) 

         

Transport Committee Tim Swift (L) Hassan Khan (L) Peter Caffrey (C) Martyn Bolt  (C) Neil Buckley (C) David Dagger (L) 
Ian Gillies (C) 
(Non-Voting) 

Ian Cherry 
(Private Sector Rep) 

 
(Non-voting) 

Chair: Keith Wakefield 
 

Deputy Chair: Eric Firth 

 Nussrat Mohammed (L) Daniel Sutherland (L) Eric Firth (L) Michael Lyons (L) Kevin Swift (L)  

 Rebecca Poulsen (C)  Manisha Kaushik (L) Christine Towler (L)   

 Taj Salam (L)   Keith Wakefield (L)   

Political Balance 
Member: 

   Andrew Pinnock (LD)    

         
West Yorkshire and 

York Investment 
Peter Box (L) 

Alex Ross-Shaw (L) 
(Post Holder) 

Barry Collins (L) 
(Post Holder) 

Peter McBride (L) 
(Post Holder) 

Richard Lewis (L) 
(Post Holder) 

Denise Jeffery (L) 
(Post Holder) 

Ian Gillies (C) 
(Post Holder) 

N/A 
Chair: Peter Box 

 

Dep Chair: Roger Marsh 

Roger Marsh       

       

                                                           
1
 Except for Transport Committee  

P
age 21



 
 

 WYCA Members Barnsley Craven Harrogate North Yorkshire Selby 

       
Leeds City Region 

Partnership Committee 

 
Judith Blake (L) 

 
P 
 
 

Peter Box (L) 
 

Stephen Houghton (L) 
(Leader) 

Richard Foster (C) 
(Leader) 

Richard Cooper (C) 
(Leader) 

Carl Les (C) 
(Leader) 

Mark Crane (C) 
(Leader) 

Chair:  To be confirmed 
 

Deputy Chair:  Tim Swift 

Peter Box (L)      

Susan Hinchcliffe (L)      

David Sheard (L)      

Tim Swift (L)      

Andrew Waller (LD) 
 

     

 
 
 

P
age 22



 

            Approved by WYCA 14 December 2017                                           Advisory Panel Appointments 2017 / 2018  
             

Panel 
WYCA Members 

(voting) 

Local Authority Co-optees 
(voting) 

Private Sector Rep 
(voting) 

Advisory Representatives 
(non-voting) 

Chief Exec Lead 
(non-voting) 

     
 

Business 
Innovation and 

Growth 

Tim Swift (L) Richard Foster (C) (Craven) 
Darren Byford (L) (Wakefield) 
Patrick Mulligan (C) (North Yorks) 
(Replacement to be confirmed by 
North Yorks whips) 

Roy Miller (L) (Barnsley) 
Shabir Pandor (L) (Kirklees) 

Martin Booth 
Mike Danby 
John Eaglesham 
Nicola Greenan 
Amir Hussain 
Lee Savage 
Philip Wilson 
Andrew Wright (Chair) 
Simon Wright 

 Yorkshire Universities; Director (Peter O’Brien – INTERIM) 
 LCR universities; 2 reps at Pro-VC level (Prof Lisa Roberts & Prof 

Liz Towns-Andrews) 
 WY Consortium of Colleges; FE Rep (Andrew Welsh) 
 West & North Yorkshire Chamber of Commerce; Chief 

Executive (Sandy Needham) 
 Innovate UK; Regional Manager (Dean Cook) 
 Digital Health Enterprise Zone; Chief Executive (Ian Sharp) 
 Department for International Trade; Regional Director for 

Yorkshire & Humber (Mark Robson) 

Kersten England (Bradford) 

Chair 
Andrew Wright 

 

     

Employment 
and Skills 

Susan Hinchcliffe (L) Patrick Mulligan (C) (North Yorks) 
Mohammed Rafique (L) (Leeds) 
Carol Runciman (LD) (York) 
Dan Sutherland (L) (Calderdale) 

Simon Barratt 
Julie Colley 
Peter Duffy 
Tom Keeney 
Karen Milner 
Rashik Parmar (Chair) 
Beverley Parrish 
Mark Roberts 
Glynn Robinson 
Joanna Robinson 
Amanda Stainton 

 LCR Skills Network; Chair (Ian Billyard) 
 LCR Skills Network; 2 Deputy Chairs (Prof Margaret House & 

VACANCY – LCR Skills Network currently selecting replacement) 
 LCR Headteachers Network; Rep (Nick Bowen) 
 Yorkshire & Humber NHS; Head of Workplace Development 

(VACANCY – currently being recruited) 
 Department of Work and Pensions; Rep (Sue Soroczan) 

Merran McRae (Wakefield) 

Chair 
Rashik Parmar 

 
     

Green Economy 
Andrew Waller (LD) Andrew Cooper (G) (Kirklees) 

Jenny Lynn (L) (Calderdale) 
Lucinda Yeadon (L) (Leeds) 

Mark Duncan 
William Firth 
Natasha Luther-Jones 
Dr Alice Owen 
Simon Pringle (Chair) 
John Williams 
 

 Northern Powergrid; Rep (Jim Cardwell) 
 Yorkshire Water; Rep (Nevil Muncaster) 
 Northern Gas Grid; Rep (David Gill) 
 The Environment Agency; Rep (Rosa Foster) 

Wallace Sampson (Harrogate) 
Martin Farrington (WYLNP) 

Chair 
Simon Pringle 

      

Land & Assets 
Susan Hinchcliffe (L) 
Roger Marsh  
Tim Swift (Chair) (L) 

David Carr (C) (York) 
Richard Foster (C) (Craven) 
Denise Jeffery (L) (Wakefield) 
Richard Lewis (L) (Leeds) 
Peter McBride (L) (Kirklees) 

Amir Hussain 
Andrew Latchmore 

 National Housing Federation; Rep (Susan Squires – until July 
2018 while Jo Allen is on maternity leave) 

 Homes & Communities Agency; Rep (Rob Pearson) 

Jacqui Gedman (Kirklees) 

Chair 
Tim Swift 

      

Business 
Investment * 

Judith Blake (Chair) (L) 
Roger Marsh 
Tim Swift (L) 

Shabir Pandor (L) (Kirklees) 
Graham Swift (C) (Harrogate) 
 

Michael Allen  
Jonathan King 
Marcus Mills 
Simon Wright 
Gareth Yates 

None None 

Chair 
Judith Blake 

*Appointments approved at Investment Committee 3 January 2018 

P
age 23



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
 

WYCA Representation on Outside Bodies 2017/18 
 

Outside Body 
 

Named Representative 

Transport for the North Partnership Board           

                                                                                                 

 

Representative:  Judith Blake 

Substitute:  Keith Wakefield 

LEP Member:  Roger Marsh 

Rail North Ltd                                                                            

 

Representative:  Judith Blake (Director) 

Substitute:  Keith Wakefield 

The Association of Rail North Partner 
Authorities Leaders’ Committee                                                                            

Representative:  Judith Blake 

Substitute:   Keith Wakefield 

East Coast Main Line Authorities Representative:  Deputy Chair of Transport 
Committee 

HS2 Regional Programme Board     Representative:  Keith Wakefield 

Calder Valley Line Working Group Representative:  Keith Wakefield 

City Regions Transport Special Interest Group      

 

Representatives: 

Chair of Transport Committee 

Deputy Chair of Transport Committee 

Leader of Opposition - Transport Committee 

Northern Powerhouse Investment Fund – 
Strategic Oversight Board                                                                                             

Chair:  Roger Marsh 

European Structural & Investment Fund (ESIF) - 
Local Sub Committee                                                                                    

Chair:  Roger Marsh 

             
    

                                                                                 

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 

Report of the Director, West Yorkshire Pension Fund to 
the meeting of Governance and Audit Committee to be 
held on 25 January 2018. 
 
 
 

            W 
Subject:  Minutes of West Yorkshire Pension Fund (WYPF) Pension Board held on the 8 

November 2017. 
 

Summary statement: 
 
The role of the Pension Board, as defined by sections 5(1) and (2) of the Public Service 
Pensions Act 2013 is to assist the Council as Scheme Manager in ensuring the effective 
and efficient governance and administration of the LGPS. 
 
City of Bradford Metropolitan District Council (the Council), as Scheme Manager, as 
defined under section 4 of the Public Service Pensions Act 2013, has delegated legal and 
strategic responsibility for West Yorkshire Pension Fund (WYPF) to the Governance and 
Audit Committee. 
 
The minutes of the WYPF Pension Board meeting are to be submitted to this committee. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Rodney Barton 
Director WYPF 

Portfolio:   
 
Leader 
 

Report Contact: Caroline Blackburn  
Technical and Development Manager 
Phone: (01274) 434523 
E-mail: caroline.blackburn@wypf.org 

 Overview & Scrutiny Area:  
 
Corporate 

 
 

Page 27

Agenda Item 7/



 

1. SUMMARY 
 
The minutes of the WYPF Pension Board meeting are to be submitted to this committee. 
 
2. Appendix 
 
Minutes of the WYPF Pension Board meeting of 8 November 2017. 

Page 28



 

 

 
Minutes of a meeting of the West Yorkshire Pension 
Fund Pension Board held on Wednesday, 8 November 
2017 at 10.00 am in West Yorkshire Pension Fund, 
Aldermanbury House, 4 Godwin Street, Bradford BD1 
2ST 
 

 
Commenced 10.00 am 
Concluded 11.30 am 

Present –  
 
Employer Representatives Member Representatives 
Councillor M Slater (Chair) – Bradford  
Ms R Manning - Employer 

Mr G Nesbitt – GMB 
Mr M Binks – Unison 
Mr C Sykes – Unison 
Mr M Morris - Unite 

 
Apologies:  
Councillor G Hyde – Leeds 
Councillor M Isherwood – Wakefield 
 
1.   CHAIR'S NOTE 

 
The Chair expressed concern about the consistent non-attendance of the Wakefield 
Metropolitan District Council  (MDC) representative. 
 
The representative had been nominated by Wakefield MDC in October 2016 but had not 
attended any of the three meetings held, either of two in-house training sessions or, as 
far as the Board was aware, attended any other pension related training. 
 
Members were reminded that in accordance with the Terms of Reference of the Board 
Members must endeavour to attend all Pension Board meetings during the year.  In the 
event of consistent non-attendance by any Member then the tenure of the membership 
should be reviewed. 
 
It was agreed that Wakefield MDC be contacted to consider what steps could be taken to 
ensure that the Wakefield MDC Representative was able to attend future meetings. 
 

2.   DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST 
 
All those present who were members or beneficiaries of the West Yorkshire Pension 
Fund disclosed, in the interests of transparency, an interest in all business under 
consideration. 
 

Page 29



 

3.   MINUTES 
 
That the minutes of the meeting held on 19 April 20 17 be signed as a correct 
record.  
 

4.   INSPECTION OF REPORTS AND BACKGROUND  PAPERS 
 
There were no appeals submitted by the public to review decisions to restrict documents. 
 

5.   MINUTES OF THE WYPF JOINT ADVISORY GROUP 27 JULY 2017 
 
The report of the Director, West Yorkshire Pension Fund (WYPF), 
 Document “A ”, reminded Members that the role of the Pension Board, as defined by 
Sections 5 (1) and (2) of the Public Service Pensions Act 2013 was to assist the Council 
as Scheme Manager in ensuring the effective and efficient governance and 
administration of the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) including securing 
compliance with the LGPS regulations and any other legislation relating to the 
governance and administration of the LGPS; securing compliance with the requirements 
imposed in relation to the LGPS by the Pensions Regulator; and any other such matters 
as the LGPS regulations may specify. 
 
The Minutes of the Meeting of the WYPF Joint Advisory Group, 27 July 2017, were 
submitted to the Pension Board to enable the Board to ensure effective governance and 
administration of the LGPS.  
 
The Director, WYPF, in response to discussions about Minute 18, confirmed that 
payments to Greater Manchester Pension Fund in relation to the transfer of pension 
arrangements for First West Yorkshire would commence in December 2017.  The 
rationale for that transfer was questioned and it was explained that an employer, First 
West Yorkshire, had made a decision to transfer their three northern funds into one place 
and it had been agreed that Greater Manchester was the most appropriate Fund. 
 
Resolved – 
 
That the minutes of the WYPF JAG meeting held on 27  July 2017 be noted. 
 
 

6.   WEST YORKSHIRE PENSION FUND AUDITED REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 
FOR 31 MARCH 2017 
 
The report of the Director, West Yorkshire Pension Fund, Document “B ” provided a 
summary of West Yorkshire Pension Fund’s financial position for the year ended 31 
March 2017. 
 
The report revealed the value of the fund at 31 March 2017 and that there had been a net 
increase of 21.59% from 31 March 2016.  Asset values for the last seven years, including 
2016/17, were provided. 
 
Members were advised that the increase in net assets between 31 March 2016 and 31 
March 2017 was the result of strong financial markets in 2016/17. Employer number 
increases were presented together with the cost per member which revealed a £1 
reduction since 2015/16.  It was explained that if all pension funds reported their 
transaction costs correctly for 2016/17 WYPF would still have the lowest cost per 
member.  

Page 30



 

 
It was explained that the full Report and Accounts for the year ended 31 March 2017 
were available on the Council’s website.  In the interest of economy they had not been 
included with the agenda. 
 
Members questioned if the increase in net assets was attributed to the drop in the value 
of sterling and it was explained that it had been because of a combination of the 
investments in the UK and overseas benefitting from the lower value of sterling. 
 
The potential to benchmark WYPF against private funds was raised and it was explained 
that comparisons of charges between the WYPF and private funds would show the 
WYPF in a very favourable light.  
 
Resolved –  
 
That the report be noted. 
 
ACTION: Director, West Yorkshire Pension Fund 
 

7.   WEST YORKSHIRE PENSION FUND - FIVE YEAR INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 
2017/18 TO 2021/22 
 
The Director, West Yorkshire Pension Fund, submitted a report, (Document “C”)  which 
presented the WYPF five year internal audit plan 2017/18 to 2021/2022. The Plan was 
reviewed annually between WYPF Finance Team and City of Bradford Metropolitan 
Council (CBMDC) Internal Audit Team by carrying out a detailed assessment of WYPF 
business risks, pensions and investment regulatory compliance environments and 
service developments. 
 
The latest plan had also taken into account the need for more internal audit resource to 
cover increased operational activities from shared services and participation in the 
Northern Pool as a result of the government directives for LGPS pooling of investments.  
WYPF was working with CBMDC internal audit to secure additional resources.  
 
Appended to the report was a copy of the Five Year Internal Audit Plan 2017/18 to 
2021/22.  A list of internal audits completed during 2016/17 was also contained in the 
report and the status of all Audit Recommendations in reports issued up to 31 March 
2017 was contained at Appendix B. 
 
It was questioned if the provision of internal audit services had been subject to a tender 
process and it was explained that because the scheme was administered by CBMDC 
which has its own Internal Audit service this had not been necessary.  It was believed 
that cost of audit activity represented very good value for money.  
 
In response to questions about the expertise required by the Internal Audit Team it was 
explained that Bradford had administered the scheme since 1986.  The team had 
developed and retained specialisms and expertise throughout that time and WYPF 
ensured that they engaged with them appropriately.   
 
A Member queried why an audit report on UK Fixed and Index Linked Public and 
Corporate Bonds had not been conducted since 2010 and was assured that the 
investment was low risk.  As resources were increased the cycle of reviews would be 
compressed and there would now be a maximum of four years between reviews. 
 
 

Page 31



 

A Member questioned if the audit reviews of pooling arrangements would be made 
available to Members.  It was explained that WYPF would continue to administer its own 
investments directly. Regular reports on the pooling arrangements would be provided to 
the WYPF Pension Board. 
 
Resolved – 
 
That the report be noted. 
 
ACTION: Director, West Yorkshire Pension Fund 
 

8.   PENSION BOARD LIABILITY  INSURANCE 
 
The report of the Director, West Yorkshire Pension Fund (WYPF), Document “D ” 
provided Members with information surrounding the subject of Pension Board Insurance 
Liability.   
 
The need for Pension Board Liability Insurance had been raised by a number of different 
Pension Boards and a Member of the WYPF Pension Board.  Different Pension Boards 
had come to different conclusions as to whether liability insurance was required.   
 
Members were reminded the WYPF Pension Board did not have a decision making role 
and that its purpose was to scrutinise decisions.  Appended to Document “D” was a copy 
of the Governance Compliance Statement to confirm where the board’s responsibility lay.  
The report revealed that Bradford Metropolitan District Council, as Administering 
Authority, was responsible for any decisions made by the WYPF and any claims in 
relation to public liability would, therefore, be made against them and not the Pension 
Board. 
 
A Member who was also a Member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants explained 
that she may be required to take out personal insurance and it was agreed that the issue 
would be explored with the Director, West Yorkshire Pension Fund, outside of the 
meeting. 
 
Resolved – 
 
That Pension Board Liability Insurance is not requi red. 
 
ACTION: Director, West Yorkshire Pension Fund 
 

9.   REGISTER OF BREACHES OF LAW  
 
The Director, West Yorkshire Pension Fund, presented Document “E ” which reported 
that, in accordance with the Public Service Pensions Act 2013, all Public Service Pension 
Schemes came under the remit of the Pensions Regulator. 
 
Section 70 of the Pensions Act 2004 (the Act) imposed a requirement to report a matter 
to the Pensions Regulator as soon as it was reasonably practicable where that person 
had reasonable cause to believe that: 
 

(a) a legal duty relating to the administration of the scheme had not been or 
was not being complied with, and 

(b) the failure to comply was likely to be of material significance to the 
Pensions Regulator in the exercise of any of its functions. 

Page 32



 

 
A Register of Breaches of Law was therefore maintained in accordance with the 
Pensions Regulator’s requirements and WYPF Breaches Procedure.   
 
Appended to the report were the Register of Breaches of Law 2016/2017 and 2017/2018.  
The entries on those registers related to either late payment of employer contributions 
which were due to be paid to West Yorkshire Pension Fund by the 19th day of the 
following month or the number of Annual Benefit Statements not issued by 31 August.  
The appendices revealed that the action being taken to reduce late payments had been 
effective and late payments were reducing.  Performance had also improved on the 
Annual Benefit Statements despatch and it was not felt that either of the breaches would 
be deemed as of material significance by the Pension Regulator. 
 
A Member asked if deposits were secured from those companies who regularly breached 
the requirement to pay employee contributions by the required date and it was explained 
that deposits were not required but that all employers had a designated business partner 
who would make them aware of any late payment.  Subsequent late payments would 
result in an administration fee and interests charges being applied.  Employers would 
also be made aware that any further late payments would be reported to the Pensions 
Regulator.  Assurances were provided that any late payments would not affect Member 
benefits. 
 
Resolved - 
 
That the entries on the Register of Breaches of Law  be noted. 
 
ACTION: Director, West Yorkshire Pension Fund 
 

10.   UPDATE ON THE GUARANTEED MINIMUM PENSION (GMP) 
RECONCILIATION EXERCISE  
 
The report of the Director, West Yorkshire Pension Fund, (Document “F ”) advised 
Members that the Guaranteed Minimum Pension (GMP) Reconciliation Exercise was to 
wind up the contracted out element link between the Local Government Pension Scheme 
(LGPS) and the State Earnings Related Pension Scheme (SERP’s) which affected 
members with service between 6 April 1978 and 5 April 1997. 
 
The reconciliation process was designed to allocate all GMP liabilities to the correct Fund 
before the deadline in 2018, after which, the relevant Fund that held the record would be 
liable for pension inflation increases. 
 
The amount of the GMP would contribute towards the calculation of the members’ 
benefits in the New Sate Pension system which began on 6 April 2016. 
 
The report revealed that the work had begun in January 2017 and the duration of the 
exercise would be determined by the number of records which required attention.  It was 
explained that 84% of the initial data match was completed; however, 22,000 cases 
(15.3%) still required attention.  The cases which needed recalculating would be 
automated and done in bulk where possible and it was expected that the number of 
cases requiring manual review would be very small. 
 
Some cases would need to be queried with HMRC and although the exercise was not yet 
at that stage it was explained that HMRC were taking over three months to response to 
queries.  Members were assured that it was felt that there was sufficient time for the work 
to be completed. 

Page 33



 

 
Resolved – 
 
That the update in Document “F” be noted and the po tential additional workloads 
anticipated from the exercise be acknowledged . 
 
ACTION: Director, West Yorkshire Pension Fund 
 

11.   GENERAL DATA PROTECTION REGULATIONS  
 
The report of the Director, West Yorkshire Pension Fund, (Document G ”) advised 
Members that the Pension Schemes held a large amount of personal data and had legal 
duties as data controllers and data processors.  
 
The General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR) would take effect from 25 May 2018.  
The regulation was a major reform that would affect all organisations that held personal 
data and pension schemes were no exception.    
 
Members received a presentation which highlighted the key issues for pension schemes 
in order to comply with the GDPR.   
 
The presentation revealed that a company had been appointed to trace members who 
the Fund had lost contact with.  In response to questions it was explained that a tender 
exercise had been undertaken to appoint that contractor and that they were paid per 
case search undertaken rather than one fixed amount. 
 
The new regulations provided individuals with the “right to erasure” and it was questioned 
how those requests could be accommodated.  It was clarified that as the WYPF was not 
a marketing company and did not share information it would be unlikely that any 
individual would request their records be deleted.  If such a request should occur the 
Fund would have to comply but individuals would be required to sign a disclaimer that 
they could not request information in the future. 
 
The affect of the regulations on the Northern Powerhouse were questioned and it was 
confirmed that as no personal data was kept for investments there should be no 
implications for the investment pool.  
  
Resolved – 
 
That the report and presentation be noted. 
 
ACTION: Director, West Yorkshire Pension Fund 
 
 

12.   INVESTMENT REFORM CRITERIA AND GUIDANCE - INVESTMENT 
POOLING 
 
The report of the Director, West Yorkshire Pension Fund, (Document “H”)  provided an 
update on the continued development of pooling arrangements. 
 
The report provided the background to the requirement for the pooling arrangements, the 
pooling criteria; the development of the Northern Pool; progress to date and issues for 
West Yorkshire Pension Fund. 
 

Page 34



 

It was questioned if the salary costs for  WYPF  personnel were publicised and it was 
confirmed that those costs were included in a report to the West Yorkshire Pension Fund 
Joint Advisory Group in January each year.  The salaries would be reviewed during the 
pooling arrangements and it was expected that increases would occur.   
 
A Member who had recently been appointed requested more information about the issue 
and it was agreed that this could be discussed with the Director, West Yorkshire Pension 
Fund and that she would be provided with copies of previous reports and minutes of the 
meetings where the issues had previously been discussed.    
 
Resolved – 
 
That the continued development of pooling arrangeme nts, subject to Government 
response, be noted. 
 
ACTION: Director, West Yorkshire Pension Fund 
 

13.   LOCAL  GOVERNMENT PENSION SCHEME 
 
The Director, West Yorkshire Pension Fund, presented Document “I”  which updated 
Members on the current issues affecting the Local Government Pension Scheme 
(LGPS). 
 
Progress on the Exit Payment Reforms was questioned and it was explained that a 
further consultation on the Government’s policy on exit payment recovery had been 
proposed for the autumn.  It was now expected that this would not occur until after 
Christmas. 
 
Resolved – 
 
That the report be noted. 
 
ACTION: Director, West Yorkshire Pension Fund 
 
 

14.   TRAINING, CONFERENCES AND SEMINARS 
 
The Director, West Yorkshire Pension Fund, presented a report 
(Document “J ”) which stressed to Members that their training to understand the 
responsibilities and issues which they would be dealing with was a very high priority.   
 
The report outlined a number of external training events which it was suggested 
Members may find useful.  Members were advised that specific one to one training could 
be provided for any Member on request.   
 
It was suggested that the next ‘in house’ training event would be held in February 2018 
and details of any specific topics which Members would like to be included should be 
provided to Caroline Blackburn.   
 
The date of the next WYPF Pension Board meeting was reported as 28 March 2018. 
 
 
 
 

Page 35



 

Resolved – 
 
That the training events and date of the next meeti ng, contained in Document “J”, 
be noted.  
 
ACTION: Director, West Yorkshire Pension Fund 
 

15.   EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC  
 
Members were asked to consider if the item relating to the West Yorkshire Pension Fund 
Investment Advisory Panel should be considered in the absence of the public.  
 
Resolved – 
 
That the public be excluded from the meeting during  consideration of the item 
relating to minutes of the West Yorkshire Pension F und Investment Advisory Panel 
meetings held on 27 April 2017 and 27 July 2017 bec ause information would be 
disclosed which was considered to be exempt informa tion within paragraph 3 
(Financial or Business Affairs) of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 
(as amended). 
 
It was considered that, in all the circumstances, t he public interest in maintaining 
the exemption outweighed the public interest in dis closing the information as it 
was in the overriding interest of proper administra tion that Members were made 
aware of the financial implications of any decision  without prejudicing the financial 
position of the West Yorkshire Pension Fund. 
 
 
 

16.   MINUTES OF THE WEST YORKSHIRE PENSION FUND INVESTMENT 
ADVISORY PANEL HELD ON 27 APRIL AND 27 JULY 2017  
 
The report of the Director, West Yorkshire Pension Fund,  
(Document “K ”) reminded Members that the role of the WYPF Pension Board, as 
defined by sections 5 (1) and (2) of the Public  Service Pensions Act 2013 was to assist 
the Council as Scheme Manager in ensuring the effective and efficient governance and 
administration of the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) including securing 
compliance with the LGPS regulations and any other legislation relating to the 
governance and administration of the LGPS; securing compliance with the requirements 
imposed in relation to the LGPS by the Pensions Regulator; and any other such matters 
as the LGPS regulations may specify. 
 
The minutes of the meetings of the WYPF Investment Advisory Panel were submitted to 
the Pension Board to ensure effective and efficient governance and administration of the 
LGPS. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 36



 

Resolved – 
 
That the Not for Publication minutes appended to Do cument “K” be noted. 
 
ACTION: Director, West Yorkshire Pension Fund 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Chair 
 

 
Note: These minutes are subject to approval as a co rrect record at the next meeting 
of the West Yorkshire Pension Fund Pension Board.  
 
 
 
THIS AGENDA AND ACCOMPANYING DOCUMENTS HAVE BEEN PRODUCED, WHEREVER POSSIBLE, ON RECYCLED PAPER 
 

Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 

Report of the City Solicitor to the meeting of Governance 
and Audit Committee on 25th January 2018 
 
 

          X   
Subject:  
 
Budget Savings to be achieved in Legal and Democratic Services in 
2018/19 – Proposed Changes to the Constitution  
 
 
 

Summary statement: 
 
This report provides Members with details of changes that could be made to the 
Constitution, by combining the Regeneration and Economy and Environment and 
Waste Management Scrutiny Committees, for recommendation to Council if 
approved. The changes arise from the need to make savings in the budget of Legal 
and Democratic Services for 2018/19. 
 
 

  
Parveen Akhtar 
City Solicitor 
 
 
 

Portfolio:   
 
Leader 
 
 

Report Contact:  Michael Bowness 
Phone: (01274) 435928 
E-mail: michael.bowness@bradford.gov.uk 

Improvement Area:   
Corporate 
 
 

Page 39

Agenda Item 8/



 
 
 

 
 

2 

 
1. Summary 

 
1.1 This report provides Members with details of possible changes to the 

Constitution, by combining the Regeneration and Economy and Environment 
and Waste Management Scrutiny Committees, for recommendation to 
Council if approved. The changes arise from the need to make savings in 
Legal and Democratic Services budget in 2018/19. 

 
2. Background 

 
2.1  The City Solicitor has been required to make savings of £70K in Committee 

Services in 2015/16 and further savings of £300K in Legal Services and 
£20K in Lord Mayoral Support in 2017/18. February’s Budget Council also 
required savings of £55K in Committee/ Scrutiny Services in 2018/19. 

 

2.2 This Report makes a suggestion regarding an adjustment to the Committee 
system which could be made to realise a saving to go towards the target 
savings of £55K. 

 
2.3 Article 14 of the Constitution requires the Monitoring Officer to maintain an 

up-to-date version of the Constitution and is authorised to make such 
amendments to the Constitution and related documents as may be 
necessary, but not including any changes of substance, to reflect and take 
account of changes in legislation, guidance, Council policy, decisions of the 
Council and the Executive, and drafting changes and/or improvements. 

 
2.4 Article 17 of the Constitution requires the Monitoring Officer to take steps to 

make himself/herself aware of the strengths and weaknesses of the 
Constitution and make recommendations for improvement.  Changes to the 
Constitution can only be made following approval by the full Council or by 
the Monitoring Officer, as at paragraph 2.3 above. 

 
2.5 This report concerns a suggestion for changes to the Constitution as a result 

of the need to achieve budget savings. 
 

3. Proposed Amendment to the Constitution 
 
3.1 Article 6 provides for 5 Overview and Scrutiny Committees. In view of the 

need to achieve budget savings and the creation of the Department of Place, 
it is suggested that the Regeneration and Economy and Environment and 
Waste Management Scrutiny Committees be combined to effect a saving 
and reflect the Council’s management structure. This could lead to a 
reduction in the demands on limited officer time at a time of significant 
budget reductions. The opportunity could be used to seek to employ other 
methods to provide effective and relevant scrutiny within available 
resources.  

 

Page 40



 
 
 

 
 

3 

3.2 Both Committees met 10 times in 2016/17. The Regeneration and Economy 
Committee considered 20 reports and the Environment and Waste 
Management 34 reports. These included detailed scrutiny reviews which 
also involved informal information gathering sessions and single agenda 
items such as Regeneration in Keighley. If combined it is envisaged that the 
merged Committee meet 11/12 times a year with a work programme 
designed to address key concerns. More meetings may be required if 
decisions are called in as meetings have to be arranged at short notice (not 
more than 10 working days from the date of receipt of the call in notice given 
by the Chair of Corporate O & S).  

 
3.3 If approved, the terms of reference for both Committees will be merged.  A 

draft terms of reference is attached as Appendix A. Should any Officer time 
in Overview and Scrutiny be released by the combination of the 2 
Committees in the first 12 months of operation, it will be absorbed by their 
undertaking other challenges posed by the development of the inquiry 
methods referred to later which have not been able to be used fully thus far 
and/or supporting currently pressured areas of work within the service.  
Should officer time be released in committee secretariat, this will be 
deployed on supporting statutory functions where there is an ongoing 
pressure on current resources. It is expected that the new arrangements will 
have to have been in place for approximately a year before any significant 
officer time will be released.  

 
Some officer resources in the Department of Place may also be released 
assuming 11/12 meetings are held annually. It is, however, difficult to assess 
the workload of a combined Committee. The merger of the previously 
separate Health and Social Care OSCs took place at the start of Council 
year 2013/14. The new Committee met 19 times that year.  The previous 
year, the Committees had met a total of 23 times (including one joint 
meeting).  Since then, the merged Committee has met roughly 13/14 times 
each year, facilitated by the merging of the policy agendas. 

 
3.4 The merger will contribute to the budget reduction required by achieving a 

saving of £12,970 on a Chair’s Special Responsibility Allowance. (The City 
Solicitor is required to make savings of £55k in Committee/ Scrutiny 
Services in 2018/19 as a result of the Budget Council decision in February 
2016). 

 
 3.5 The Council’s budget has significantly reduced in recent years and is 

currently forecast to reduce still further and be in the region of £350 m in 
2020 which means it will be around half of what it was in 2010 in real terms. 
It is felt that with the reduction in the Council’s budget, the committee 
structure should further reflect this reduced budget to some degree  

 
3.6 The following must be recognised, however.  
 
 Both Committees currently have full work programmes and there is no 

current duplication between the agendas. 
 
 The Committees between them cover three of the District’s priorities as set 

out in the Bradford District Plan:- 

Page 41



 
 
 

 
 

4 

 
 - Better skills, more jobs and a growing economy 
 - Safe, clean and active communities 
 - Decent homes that people can afford to live in. 
 
3.7 Combining the Committees may affect capacity to scrutinise the delivery of 

these priorities.  This potential change may, however, be the opportunity to 
develop methods of scrutiny used by other Councils to seek to widen 
scrutiny engagement by all Councillors, more stakeholders and the public.    

 
3.8 As the Council’s own financial resources reduce it can be argued that the 

importance of the Overview and Scrutiny function in holding to account all 
public bodies operating and making spending decisions in the District 
becomes even more important. The Committees also have a vital role 
ensuring that public bodies are working with local people, the voluntary 
sector and private sector appropriately and using their influence to promote 
this. 

 
3.9 If the Committees merge, and the number of meetings reduce, fewer 

Members will take part in scrutiny, the principal way in which they are able to 
have knowledge of, involvement in and influence over the Council’s policy 
and decision making process. However, there are a range of scrutiny options 
and tools available which are used by other Councils (and used to some 
degree by Bradford) to add value; some of these are detailed below as 
options if the two Overview and Scrutiny Committees are combined.   

 
3.10 Some Councils (albeit smaller ones) engage all their non-executive 

Members in scrutiny inquiries, reporting that it allows all Members to develop 
understanding and specialist knowledge of issues relevant to their 
constituents. It also provides satisfying roles for non- executive Councillors. 
This will require exploring in a Bradford context. 

 
3.11 There is also evidence from the Annual Overview and Scrutiny Survey that a 

large majority of those involved in or impacted by scrutiny believe that it 
currently delivers accountability and contributes to improving local services. 

 
3.12   It is suggested that the Regeneration and Economy and Environment and 

Waste Management Scrutiny Committees be combined, alongside 
development of other inquiry methods to support and add value to the 
scrutiny process. It is suggested that the Scrutiny Chairs in developing their 
draft work programmes for the year ahead consider the extent to which non 
Committee Members can be involved and the use of the other inquiry 
methods mentioned below.  It is also suggested that Chairs liaise with 
Portfolio Holders to explore the extent to which the Committees can play a 
role in emerging policy issues.  (The Peer Review  commented that such a 
role could lead to a more balanced position.  Reflecting this suggestion 
where appropriate to do so may refine the Committees’ role and enhance 
their effectiveness).  Overview and Scrutiny Committees could engage with 
officers at an early stage of policy development with Portfolio Holder support, 
allowing Members to enhance policy development through their comments 
and observations. 

 

Page 42



 
 
 

 
 

5 

3.13  Any new model needs to recognise and support Members in participating in 
scrutiny activity around their other demands representing their wards and 
other commitments. A scrutiny training plan, involving both Councillors with 
experience of scrutiny and new Councillors who might be engaged in either 
the formal or an informal scrutiny process, could be developed to support 
Members in the activity. It is also suggested that this proposal, if approved, 
be reviewed in 12 months time to assess its operation and effectiveness.  

 

Inquiry/Action  Advantages  

Workshop to develop the work 
programme and methods of 
inquiry , topics to be covered, 
priority areas, success measure 
defined 

Objectives set, themes covered, 
evidence methodology and scope is 
understood. Align scrutiny with 
outcome performance   

Face to Face Interviews  Direct evidence from stakeholders and 
partners  

Structured Conversations and 
Focus Groups with service users - 
can include non executive 
Members, residents, and partners 

Promotes understanding of  the issues 
and engages the public, drives 
efficiency and service improvements  

Surveys and Questionnaires  Wider engagement, promotes equality 
and diversity and access to hard to 
reach groups using social media.  

Desk Task and Finish Reviews  Quick reviews where issues are 
straight forward 

Time Limited Task and Finish 
Groups, can include non 
Executive Members, residents, 
and partners  

More effective engagement with public 
and partners over a limited time 
horizon. Every member can have the 
chance to participate   

In Depth Task and Finish 
exercises 

Allows more rigorous analysis. 
Process not restricted to formal 
committee meetings -Wide range of 
evidence and perspectives   

Cross Cutting inquiries  Allows a wider look at issues and 
interdependences for example, flood 
alleviation, flood resilience, and climate 
change  

Site Visits to comparator Councils  Gives an opportunity to benchmark 
scrutiny and view new ways of working 
first hand.  

Fixed number of Scrutiny 
Members, with theme Champions 
to lead inquiry.  

Commonly used in smaller district 
councils, gives ward Members a role to 
champion specific priorities through to 
inquiry 

Database of Members’ skills, 
knowledge and expertise to 
ensure these are used in scrutiny 

Using Members’ skills and knowledge 
in the most effective and appropriate 
way, leading to more satisfying roles in 
scrutiny.  

Scrutiny in a Day                                    Intensive focus on an issue for quick 
results 

 

Page 43



 
 
 

 
 

6 

Sources:-  
 
(Council websites 
Centre for Public Scrutiny  
Good Scrutiny Good Question report  
National Assembly of Wales - Public Engagement Toolkit) 
 

 3.14 The Committee is requested to consider whether to amend Article 6 
Overview and Scrutiny Committees by combining the Regeneration and 
Economy and Environment and Waste Management Scrutiny Committees.    

 
4. Financial and Resource Appraisal 
 
 4.1 The savings achieved by implementing this suggestion will contribute 

£12,970 to the budget reduction required of £55K. 
 
5. Risk Management and Governance Issues 
 
 5.1 The risks involved with the suggestion are capacity to scrutinise effectively 

the Council Plan priorities may be affected.  In developing the merged 
Committee’s workplan, care will be needed to ensure that these risks are 
mitigated effectively. 

 
6. Legal Appraisal 
 
 6.1 Overview & Scrutiny was introduced as part of the modernisation of local 

government by Section 21 of the Local Government Act 2000.  It requires 
the Council to have at least one O & S committee:  

 
 to review or scrutinise decisions made, or other action taken, in 

connection with the discharge of any functions which are the 
responsibility of the executive, 

 
 to make reports or recommendations to the authority or the executive 

with respect to the discharge of any functions which are the 
responsibility of the executive,  

 
 
 to review or scrutinise decisions made, or other action taken, in 

connection with the discharge of any functions which are not the 
responsibility of the executive,  

 
 to make reports or recommendations to the authority or the executive 

with respect to the discharge of any functions which are not the 
responsibility of the executive,  

 
 to make reports or recommendations to the authority or the executive 

on matters which affect the authority's area or the inhabitants of that 
area,  

 
 and in the case of an authority to which section 244 of the National 

Health Service Act 2006 applies—(i) to review and scrutinise, in 

Page 44



 
 
 

 
 

7 

accordance with regulations under that section, matters relating to the 
health service (within the meaning given by that Act as extended by 
that section) in the authority's area, and (ii) to make reports and 
recommendations on such matters in accordance with the 
regulations. 

 
  The Committees are intended as a counterweight to the executive structures 

created by the 2000 Act. The legislation applying to O & S was amended by 
the Localism Act 2011. 

 
  Early guidance from the Government indicated that all but the smallest local 

authorities should have more than one overview and scrutiny committee, 
and that they should meet frequently. It also stated the expectation that they 
should have a cross-cutting rather than service-based view of the local 
authority’s business.  

 
7. Other Implications 
 

7.1 There are no Equality and Diversity, Sustainability, Greenhouse Gas 
Emissions Impacts, Community Safety, Human Rights Act, Trade Union, 
Ward and Area Committee Action Plan implications of this report.  

 
8. Not for Publication Documents 
 
 8.1 None 
 
9. Options 
 
        9.1       The options are either to continue with the existing 5 Overview and Scrutiny 

Committees or recommend the merger of the 2 Committees. 
 

10. Recommendations 
 
 10.1 That Governance and Audit Committee consider the suggested changes to 

the Constitution as described in this report. If the Committee wish to 
recommend adoption of the merger of the Committees it will form a 
recommendation to Council as an amendment to the Constitution.  

 
11. Appendices 
 
 Appendix A - Proposed terms of reference for a combined Committee 
   
12. Background Papers 
 
 None 
  
 

Page 45



 
 
 

 
 

8 

Appendix A 
 
 
Draft Terms of Reference 
 
 
To replace Articles 6.5 and 6.6 of the Constitution 
 
Current 
 
6.5  Regeneration and Economy Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 
6.5.1  The strategies, plans, policies, functions and services directly relevant to the 

corporate priority about creating a more prosperous district. 
 
6.6  Environment and Waste Management Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 
6.6.1  The strategies, plans, policies, functions and services directly relevant to the 

corporate priority about improving waste management, neighbourhood services 
and the environment. 

 
Proposed 
 
6.5  Regeneration and Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 
6.5.1  The strategies, plans, policies, functions and services directly relevant to the 

corporate priorities about Better skills, more jobs and a growing economy, Safe, 
clean and active communities and Decent homes that people can afford to live in.  

 
The references to the Regeneration and Economy Overview and Scrutiny Committee and 
Environment and Waste Management Overview and Scrutiny Committee in Articles 6.7.3 
and 6.8.3 shall be replaced by a reference to the Regeneration and Environment 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G:\Legal Services\City Solicitor\Committees\Governance and Audit Cttee\Report to Gov  Audit Cttee Jan 18 - Review of the 
Constitution V8 21 12 17.doc 

Page 46



 

 
 

Report of the External Auditor to the meeting of 
Governance and Audit Committee to be held on 25 
January 2018. 
 
 

           Y 
Subject:   
 
External Audit Progress Report. 
 

Summary statement: 
 
The report:  

 updates the Committee on progress with the 2017/18 audit; 
 provides details of our 2017/18 ‘Financial Reporting Workshops’; 
 requests information about arrangements to prevent and detect fraud and to comply 

with applicable law and regulations; and  
 highlights key emerging national issues which may be of interest. 

Mark Kirkham 
Partner 
Mazars LLP 
Report Contact:  Mark Dalton 
Phone:  0113 387 8735 
e-mail:  mark.dalton@mazars.co.uk  

Page 47

Agenda Item 9/

mailto:mark.dalton@mazars.co.uk


 

1. SUMMARY 

We have starting planning the 2017/18 external audit of the City of Bradford Metropolitan 
District Council (the Council).  

We will present our Audit Strategy Memorandum to the March 2018 Governance and Audit 
Committee. This will set out the significant risks we have identified for our audit of the 
Council’s statement of accounts and the value for money conclusion and our wider 
approach to the audit.  

As part of our audit we need to understand how the Governance and Audit Committee, as 
those charged with governance, gains assurance over management processes and 
arrangements: 

 to prevent and detect fraud; and 

 to comply with applicable law and regulations. 

In our progress report we ask some questions about these arrangements and would be 
grateful if the Committee could provide a response by the end of March 2018. The request 
also covers the appropriateness of the going concern assumption. 

The report also highlights our 2017/18 ‘Financial Reporting Workshops’ and emerging 
issues and developments which may be of interest to Members of the Committee. 
 
 
2. BACKGROUND 
 
Not applicable 
 
3. OTHER CONSIDERATIONS 
 
None 
 

4. FINANCIAL & RESOURCE APPRAISAL 
 
Not applicable 
 

5. RISK MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE ISSUES 
 
None 
 
6. LEGAL APPRAISAL 
 
Not applicable 
 
7. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
7.1 EQUALITY & DIVERSITY 
 
Not applicable 
 
7.2 SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
Not applicable 
 Page 48



 

7.3 GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS IMPACTS 
 
Not applicable 
 
7.4 COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 
 
Not applicable 
 
7.5 HUMAN RIGHTS ACT 
 
 Not applicable 
 
7.6 TRADE UNION 
 
Not applicable 
 
7.7 WARD IMPLICATIONS 
 
Not applicable 
 
7.8 AREA COMMITTEE ACTION PLAN IMPLICATIONS  

(for reports to Area Committees only) 
 
Not applicable 
 
8. NOT FOR PUBLICATION DOCUMENTS 
 
None 
 
9. OPTIONS 
 
Not applicable 
 
10. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
That the Governance and Audit Committee considers: 

 the External Audit Progress Report; and 

 the request for a response by the end of March 2018 to questions about 
arrangements to prevent and detect fraud and to comply with applicable law and 
regulations. 

 
11. APPENDICES 
 
External Audit Progress Report. 
 
12. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
 
None 
 

Page 49



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Audit Progress Report 

 
City of Bradford Metropolitan District Council 
 

   

     

 

 

 

January 2018  
 
 

 

 

 

P
age 51



 

2 

 

  

Contents 
 

Audit progress .......................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 3 

National publications and other updates ................................................................................................................................................................................ 5 

Contact details ......................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 8 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Our reports are prepared in the context of the Public Sector Audit Appointment Limited’s ‘Statement of responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies’. Reports and letters prepared by 

appointed auditors and addressed to Members or officers are prepared for the sole use of the Council and we take no responsibility to any Member or officer in their individual capacity or to 

any third party. 

Mazars LLP is the UK firm of Mazars, an international advisory and accountancy group. Mazars LLP is registered by the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales.

 

P
age 52



 

3 

 

Audit progress
Purpose of this report 

The purpose of this report is to update the Governance and Audit 
Committee of the City of Bradford Metropolitan District Council (the 
Council) on progress in delivering our responsibilities as your external 
auditors. 

This paper also seeks to highlight key emerging national issues and 
developments which may be of interest to Members of the Audit and 
Governance Committee. 

If you require any additional information regarding the issues included 
within this briefing, please contact any member of your engagement team. 

Finally, please note our website address www.mazars.co.uk which sets 
out the range of work Mazars carries out, both within the UK and abroad.  
It also details the existing work Mazars does in the public sector. 

2017/18 audit 

We have starting planning for the 2017/18 audit which covers: 

• the audit of the financial statements; 

• our work to conclude on your arrangements for securing value for 
money; and 

• a programme of work specified by NAO in respect of your Whole 
Government Accounts submission. 

Our planning involves assessing the risks of material misstatement in the 
financial statements and the risks relating to the value for money 
conclusion and developing a plan of audit procedures to address the 
identified risks. We do this by: 

• identifying the business risks facing the Council, including 
assessing your own risk management arrangements; 

• considering the Council’s financial performance; 

• assessing internal control, including reviewing the control 
environment; 

• evaluating and testing the IT control environment; 

• assessing the risk of material misstatement arising from the 
activities and controls within the information systems; and 

• walking through the key controls within the key financial systems.  

We will hold planning meetings with senior managers to inform our 
planning risk assessments and to better understand the priorities and 
challenges the Council faces. 

We will present our Audit Strategy Memorandum to the March 2018 
Governance and Audit Committee. This will set out the significant risks we 
have identified for the audit, for both the opinion on the statement of 
accounts and the value for money conclusion, and our approach to the 
audit.  

As part of our commitment to quality, team members have already 
attended our annual audit training conference which includes feedback 
from quality reviews to take into account in the coming year.   

Financial Reporting Workshops 

Planning of our Local Government Financial Reporting workshops for early 
in the New Year is well advanced. These workshops provide an update on 
the latest developments as well as a forum for our clients to discuss 
emerging issues. Agenda items will include a revisit of 2016/17 issues, 
early close implications, changes in the 2017/18 Code and a forward look 
to future regulatory and policy changes. The Leeds event is on 
Wednesday 7th February 2018 and we have invited relevant officers from 
the Council. 

P
age 53



 

4 

 

Request for information 

International Auditing Standards require auditors to ask ‘those charged 
with governance’ (i.e. the Governance and Audit Committee) about 
arrangements the entity has put in place: 

• to prevent and detect fraud; and 

• to comply with applicable law and regulations. 

Our request also covers the appropriateness of the going concern 
assumption. 

We list our questions below and would be grateful if the Committee could 
provide a response by the end of March 2017. Your responses will inform 
our assessment of the risk of fraud and error within the financial 
statements, which in turn determines the extent of audit work we need to 
undertake. 

1) How do you exercise oversight of management's processes in 
relation to: 

- undertaking an assessment of the risk that the financial 
statements may be materially misstated due to fraud or error;  

- identifying and responding to risks of fraud in the Council, please 
detail any specific risks of fraud which management have 
identified, and classes of transactions, account balances, or 
disclosure for which a risk of fraud is likely to exist;  

- communicating to employees its view on business practice and 
ethical behavior; and  

- communicating to you the processes for identifying and 
responding to fraud or error. 

2) How do you oversee management processes for identifying and 
responding to possible breaches of internal control?  Are you aware 
of any significant breaches of internal control during 2017/18? 

3) How do you gain assurance that all relevant laws and regulations 
have been complied with?  Are you aware of any instances of 
significant non-compliance during 2017/18? 

4) Are you aware of any actual or potential litigation or claims that 
would affect the financial statements? 

5) Have you carried out a preliminary assessment of the going concern 
assumption and if so have you identified any events which may cast 
significant doubt on the Council’s ability to continue as a going 
concern? 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

P
age 54



 

5 

 

National publications and other updates  
 

 National publications and other updates 

1. A short guide to Local Authorities, National Audit Office, October 2017  

2. Update on Auditor Appointments from 2018/19, Public  Sector Audit Appointments, October 2017 

3. Care Quality Commission regulating health and socia l care, National Audit Office, October 2017  

4. PSAA is consulting on the fee scale for 2018/19 aud its of opted-in bodies, December 2017  

5. PSAA’s Report on the results of auditors’ work 2016 /17: Local government bodies, December 2017  

6. Secretary of State for Communities and Local Govern ment announces shake-up of the funding formula for local authorities, December 
2017 

 

1. A short guide to Local Authorities, National Aud it Office, October 2017 

The NAO is publishing a suite of short guides for the new Parliament, one for each government department and a selection of cross-government issues. The 
guide gives an overview of how local government is funded, the pressures local authorities face, staffing, major recent developments and what to look out for 
in the main local authority services.  

For example, the guide highlights 39% of the 2015/16 local authorities budgeted non‑schools expenditure (£16.8 billion) was allocated to adult social care. 
The guide also highlights key challenges to accountability in local government. 

https://www.nao.org.uk/report/short-guide-to-local-authorities/ 

2. Update on Auditor Appointments from 2018/19, Pub lic Sector Audit Appointments, October 2017  

The consultation on the proposed auditor appointments from 2018/19 closed on 22 September. PSAA received 442 responses from opted-in bodies 
confirming acceptance of the proposed appointment. A response was not received from 34 bodies and PSAA has written to those bodies to say that they 
have assumed they accept the firm proposed.   PSAA received 7 representations to proposed appointments for reasons of joint working relevant to the 
auditor’s responsibilities, independence issues with the proposed auditor, or concerns about service from the proposed firm. In these cases, PSAA are now 
consulting on alternative proposed appointments where appropriate. 

https://www.psaa.co.uk/2017/10/news-release-update-on-auditor-appointments-from-201819/ 

PSAA has now confirmed the auditor appointments from 2018/19 to the opted-in bodies by the statutory deadline of 31 December 2017. 

https://www.psaa.co.uk/2017/12/news-release-confirmation-of-auditor-appointments-from-2018-19/  

P
age 55



 

6 

 

3. Care Quality Commission regulating health and so cial care, National Audit Office, October 2017 

The Care Quality Commission has improved as an organisation, but now needs to overcome some persistent issues with the timeliness of some of its 
regulation activities if it is to sustain further improvement, the National Audit Office (NAO) has found. 

The report found that the Commission has completed its inspection and rating programme comprising more than 28,000 provider locations, which provides a 
benchmark of the quality of health and social care services. It has significantly reduced staff vacancies and is increasing its focus on cost savings. In addition, 
the Commission has improved how it measures its performance, and takes action to correct poor performance. 

Inspection staff, however, highlighted concerns to the NAO about how well the broader information systems currently supported them. The NAO also found 
that Commission does not meet its timeliness targets for some of its regulation activities, such as registration and publication of inspection reports. 

According to the NAO, although most providers and inspectors think that the Commission’s judgements are fair, stakeholders have concerns about 
consistency. The Commission is seeking to address consistency issues through its quality assurance processes and training. 

The Commission is taking more enforcement action when care falls below fundamental standards, and there is evidence that it influences providers to 
improve quality, with most of the providers rated either inadequate or requires improvement having improved their rating on re-inspection. The number of 
completed enforcement actions increased over 2015/16 and 2016/17, while the number of providers entering special measures remained steady. The 
Commission links the increase with a focus on improving its inspectors’ skills and knowledge about enforcement. Poor recording, however, means the 
Commission cannot be assured that enforcement action is always completed. 

The Commission made progress in implementing its new strategy during 2016/17 although it missed early milestones on rolling out use of resources 
assessments and designing its approach to the next phase of inspection. 

https://www.nao.org.uk/report/care-quality-commission-regulating-health-and-social-care/ 

4. PSAA is consulting on the fee scale for 2018/19 audits of opted-in bodies, December 2017 

The consultation sets out the proposed scale of fees for the work to be undertaken by appointed auditors in respect of the 2018/19 financial statement at 
bodies that have opted into PSAA’s national auditor appointment scheme. 

PSAA propose that scale audit fees for 2018/19 should reduce by 23 per cent, compared to the fees applicable for 2017/18. This reduction is possible as a 
result of the favourable prices secured from audit firms in the recent audit services procurement. It follows a period from 2012/13 to 2017/18 in which scale 
fees reduced significantly by an aggregate of 55 per cent. 

The proposed audit fee for the City of Bradford Metropolitan District Council for the 2018/19 audit is £142,694 (compared to £185,317 for the 2017/18 audit). 

https://www.psaa.co.uk/audit-fees/201819-work-programme-and-scales-of-fees/  

5. PSAA’s Report on the results of auditors’ work 2 016/17: Local government bodies, December 2017  

On Tuesday 19 December Public Sector Audit Appointments published its Report on the results of auditors’ work 2016/17: Local government bodies. This is 
the third report on the results of auditors’ work at local government bodies published by PSAA. It summarises the results of auditors’ work at 497 principal 
bodies and 9,752 small bodies for 2016/17. The report covers the timeliness and quality of financial reporting, auditors’ local value for money work, and the 
extent to which auditors used their statutory reporting powers. 

https://www.psaa.co.uk/audit-quality/reports-on-the-results-of-auditors-work/  

P
age 56



 

7 

 

6. Secretary of State for Communities and Local Gov ernment announces shake-up of the funding formula f or local authorities, December 2017  

On Tuesday 19 December, within the local government settlement to the House of Commons, Communities secretary Sajid Javid announced a shake-up of 
the formula for distributing funding to local authorities in England. He also set out plans to allow councils to retain 75% of their business rates and a 1% 
increase in council tax raising powers. 

The Communities secretary confirmed plans to end the revenue support grant and allow councils to retain 100% of local business rates by 2020 would be put 
on hold, over concerns that some councils could be left out of pocket. Instead, he said there needed to be an “updated and more responsive distribution 
methodology”, and that councils would be allowed to retain 75% of business rates by 2020/21. He said: “I am today publishing a formal consultation on a 
review of relative needs and resources. I aim to implement a new system based on its findings in 2020/21.” 

He also announced that councils would be allowed to increase their Council Tax requirement by an additional 1% without a local referendum, bringing it in line 
with inflation.    

http://www.publicfinance.co.uk/news/2017/12/javid-announces-overhaul-local-authority-funding?utm_source=Adestra&utm_medium=email&utm_term= 

 
  

P
age 57



 

8 

 

 

Contact details 
 
 

Please let us know if you would like further information on any items in this report.  

www.mazars.co.uk 

 

Mark Kirkham 
Partner 
0113 387 8850 

mark.kirkham@mazars.co.uk 

 

Mark Dalton 
Senior Manager 
0113 387 8735 
 
mark.dalton@mazars.co.uk 

 

Mazars LLP 
Mazars House 
Gelderd Road 
Gildersome 
Leeds 
LS271 7JN 
 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 58



 

 
 

Report of the External Auditor to the meeting of 
Governance and Audit Committee to be held on 25 
January 2018. 
 
 

            Z 
Subject:   
 
Certification of Grants Report 2016/17. 
 

Summary statement: 
 
The letter summarises the results of the External Auditor’s certification work on grant 
claims and returns within the Public Sector Audit Appointment’s grant regime for 2016/17. 

 

Mark Kirkham 
Partner 
Mazars LLP 
Report Contact:  Mark Dalton 
Phone:  0113 387 8735 
e-mail:  mark.dalton@mazars.co.uk  

Page 59

Agenda Item 10/

mailto:mark.dalton@mazars.co.uk


 

1. SUMMARY 
 
The letter summarises the findings of the External Auditor’s certification work on grant 
claims and returns within the Public Sector Audit Appointment’s grant regime for 2016/17. 
 
2. BACKGROUND 
 
As the Council’s appointed external auditor we act as agent of PSAA to certify specified 
claims in line with certification instructions issued by PSAA. 
 
3. OTHER CONSIDERATIONS 
 
None 
 

4. FINANCIAL & RESOURCE APPRAISAL 
 
Not applicable 
 

5. RISK MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE ISSUES 
 
None 
 
6. LEGAL APPRAISAL 
 
Not applicable 
 
7. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
7.1 EQUALITY & DIVERSITY 
 
Not applicable 
 
7.2 SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
Not applicable 
 
7.3 GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS IMPACTS 
 
Not applicable 
 
7.4 COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 
 
Not applicable 
 
7.5 HUMAN RIGHTS ACT 
 
 Not applicable 
 
7.6 TRADE UNION 
 
Not applicable 
 Page 60



 

7.7 WARD IMPLICATIONS 
 
Not applicable 
 
7.8 AREA COMMITTEE ACTION PLAN IMPLICATIONS  

(for reports to Area Committees only) 
 
Not applicable 
 
8. NOT FOR PUBLICATION DOCUMENTS 
 
None 
 
9. OPTIONS 
 
Not applicable 
 
10. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

That the Governance and Audit Committee considers the results of the certification work 
for 2016/17. 
 
11. APPENDICES 
 
Letter: Results of certification work 2016/17. 
 
12. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
 
None 
 

Page 61



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Mazars LLP – Salvus House - Aykley Heads - Durham - DH1 5TS 

Tel: +44 (0) 191 383 6300 – Fax: +44 (0) 191 383 6350 – www.mazars.co.uk 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Mazars LLP is the UK firm of Mazars, an integrated international advisory and accountancy organisation. Mazars LLP is a limited liability partnership 
registered in England and Wales with registered number OC308299 and with its registered office at Tower Bridge House, St Katharine’s Way, London 
E1W 1DD. 
  
We are registered to carry on audit work in the UK and Ireland by the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. Details about our audit 
registration can be viewed at www.auditregister.org.uk under reference number C001139861. 
 
VAT number: 839 8356 73 

 

  

Members of the Governance and Audit Committee  
City of Bradford Metropolitan District Council  
City Hall  
Norfolk Gardens  
Bradford  
BD1 1UH 

Our ref  

Your ref  

Direct line  

Email  

  4 January 2018 

 

Dear Members 

Results of certification work 2016-17 

As the Council’s appointed auditor, we acted as an agent of Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA) who 

have responsibilities to make certification arrangements for specified claims and returns. For 2016/17 the 

only claim or return within this regime was the Housing Benefit Subsidy Return.  This letter reports the 

findings of our work.  

In 2016/17 the prescribed tests for our work were set out in the HBCOUNT module and BEN01 

Certification Instructions issued by PSAA and, on completion of the specified work, we conclude our work 

by issuing a certificate. The certificate states whether the claim has been certified either without 

qualification; without qualification following amendment by the Council; or with a qualification letter. 

The concept of materiality does not apply to certification of claims and returns in that any matters arising 

are either reported to the grant-paying department in a qualification letter or the return is amended (where 

it is possible to quantify the impact of the error). Where we issue a qualification letter or the claim or return 

is amended by the Council, the grant paying body may withhold or claw-back grant funding.  

The Council’s 2016/17 return was amended and was subject to a qualification letter. Detailed findings, 

including the extrapolation of errors identified, were reported in our qualification letter to the Department for 

Work and Pensions (DWP) on 23rd November 2017. The table below details our findings. 

Claim or return 
Value of claim or 

return 
Amended (1) Qualified (2) 

Housing benefit subsidy £171,297,820 Yes – Subsidy 

increased by £9 from 

£171,297,811 

Yes 

 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 63



 

  

 

    2/2 

 

(1) Where an error was identified and it was possible to quantify the impact of the error across the whole 

population, the Council amended its return. Adjustments in 2016/17 related to 3 non HRA rent rebate 

cases in which earned income was found to be incorrect.  

(2) Where an error was identified in sample testing and it was not possible to quantify the error the matter 

was reported as an extrapolated error in a qualification letter to the Department.  

The initial testing of cases carried out by ourselves identified one case where rent had been input 

incorrectly resulting in underpaid benefit of £0.18. As a result of this finding, an additional sample of 40 

cases was subject to testing, within which one further error was identified. This error had resulted in benefit 

being overpaid by £11. 

As a result of errors identified in 2016/17 with regards to earned income being input incorrectly for rent 

allowances cases, extended testing was undertaken on 40 cases. This testing identified 2 cases with a 

combined overpayment of benefit of £851 and one case where benefit was underpaid by £16. 

We reported in our qualification letter that given the nature of the population it was unlikely that even 

significant additional work would allow us to conclude that the relevant cell in the subsidy claim is fairly 

stated. If the DWP decide to extrapolate the identified errors from the test sample to the whole relevant 

population it would reduce subsidy by £191,939 and £35 respectively (as there is no entitlement to subsidy 

for benefit which has not been paid, the cases where an underpayment was identified have not been 

treated as an error for subsidy purposes and have been excluded from these extrapolations). 

Fees 

PSAA set an indicative fee for our work. This indicative fee, and the final fee charged for 2016/17, is 

detailed in the table below:     

 

Claim or return 
2016/17 indicative 

fee 
2016/17 final fee 2015/16 final fee 

Housing benefit subsidy £19,733 £19,733 £16,520 

 

Yours faithfully 

Mark Kirkham 

Partner 

For and on behalf of Mazars LLP 

 
This letter is prepared in the context of the ‘Statement of responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies’ issued by 

Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd. Reports and letters prepared by appointed auditors and addressed to 

members or officers are prepared for the sole use of the Authority and we take no responsibility to any member or 

officer in their individual capacity or to any third party.  

Mazars LLP is the UK firm of Mazars, an international advisory and accountancy group. Mazars LLP is registered 

by the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. 

Page 64



    

  
 

 

   
 
Report of the Director of Finance to the meeting of the 
Governance and Audit Committee to be held on 25 
January 2018 
 
 

          AA 
Subject:   
 
Annual Governance Statement 2016-17 
 
 

Summary statement: 
 
This report reviews progress on the significant governance concerns reported in 
the Council’s Annual Governance Statement 2016-17 
 

  
Report Contact:  Stuart McKinnon-Evans 
Strategic Director, Corporate Services 
Phone: (01274) 432800 

E-mail: stuart.mckinnon-
evans@bradford.gov.uk 

Portfolio:   
 
Leader 
 

 Improvement Area:   
Corporate 
 
 
 

Page 65

Agenda Item 11/



 
 

 2 

1. Summary 
 

The purpose of this report is to update members on the progress and 
improvements being made in addressing those significant governance concerns 
reported in the Council’s Annual Governance Statement 2016-17. 

 
2. Background and Process 
 
2.1 The annual governance review is undertaken against the principles contained in the 

CIPFA/Solace framework – Delivering Good Governance in Local Government.  
The Council is required to consider the effectiveness of its current arrangements 
and: 

 Assess the extent to which it complies with the principles and requirements of 
good governance 

 Identify systems, processes and documentation that provide evidence of 
compliance 

 Identify and ensure individuals and committees hold responsibility for 
governance arrangements and their ongoing application and effectiveness 

 Identify issues that have not been addressed adequately and any planned 
changes required in the future 

 Prepare an action plan, identifying any individuals responsible for taking any 
changes forward 

 
2.2 The review is undertaken by the Strategic Director, Corporate Services as S151 

Officer. In conducting the review, reliance is placed upon six main sources of 
evidence: 

 The Constitution of the Council 

 The adequacy of management actions in relation to key risks as identified in 
the corporate risk register 

 Reports to the Executive  and Scrutiny Committee’s on performance, risk and 
finance issues 

 Key control and fraud risk self assessments supporting written confirmation 
from Strategic Directors that all reasonable steps have been taken to ensure 
compliance with established policies, procedures, laws and regulations. 

 The reports of Internal Audit 

 External Audit and other external inspection agencies. 
 
2.3 A report by the Director of Finance to the meeting of the Governance and Audit 

Committee on 27th June 2017 set out the approach to conducting the review of the 
effectiveness of the Council’s governance framework, including the system of 
internal control, the conclusions of the review and the Annual Governance 
Statement for 2016-17. 

 
2.4 The Annual Governance Statement (AGS) was formally reviewed and approved by 

the Governance & Audit Committee at its meeting on 27th June 2017.The 
Committee subsequently authorised the Leader of the Council and the Chief 
Executive to sign the document on behalf of the Council for inclusion with the 
Statement of Accounts for 2016-17. 

 
2.5 The Statement reported that the Governance and Audit Committee would be kept 

informed of progress in addressing weaknesses and areas of concern. 
 
 

Page 66



 
 

 3 

 
3. Review and Conclusion 
 

The Annual Governance Statement identified eight governance challenges, 
 
1) Safeguarding Vulnerable Children  
2) Establishing sound governance structures pertaining to the West Yorkshire 

Combined Authority ensuring democratic accountability at the local level. 
3) Impact on governance structures arising from developing policies for the 

delivery of regional devolution. 
4) Ensuring an effective, integrated system of health and social care 
5) Implications of the European Union referendum 
6) Procurement issues. 
7) Implementation of decisions  already taken, typically through the budget 

process. 
8) Resourcing and updating some of the Council’s management systems such as 

risk, procurement, income and health and safety.  
 
A comprehensive review of these governance issues has been undertaken and a 
detailed update is provided in Appendix 1.Council officers recognise the need for 
continuing effort to achieve improvements in the delivery and operation of their 
services. 

 
4. Financial and resources appraisal 
 

There are no direct financial implications arising from this report.  
 

5. Risk Management 
  

The Council’s risk management framework remains in place and, as previously 
reported, corporate risks are reviewed regularly, usually at quarterly intervals.  
There are no new risk management issues arising from this report. 

 
 
6. Legal appraisal 
 
6.1 The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 require the Council to conduct a review 

of the effectiveness of the Council’s governance framework including the system of 
internal control. 

 
6.2 The Council is required to test its governance arrangements against the principles 

contained in the CIPFA/Solace framework ‘Delivering good governance in Local 
Government’. 

 
6.3 The CIPFA/Solace framework also requires the Council to provide an outline of the 

actions taken, or proposed, to deal with significant governance issues.  
 
 

 
7. Other implications 
 
7.1 Equal Rights 
 

Page 67



 
 

 4 

Risk management assists in ensuring barriers to the delivery of services are 
reduced which in turn supports the achievement of equality and diversity. 
  

 
7.2 Greehouse Gas Emission Impacts 
  

There are no impacts on Gas Emissions. 
 

7.3 Sustainability Implications 
 

The Annual Governance Statement will examine the sustainability of the Council’s 
activity and ensures that mechanisms are in place to deliver business continuity. 
 

7.4 Community Safety Implications 
 

 Community safety implications are considered when identifying strategic risks such 
as safeguarding. 

 
7.5 Human Rights Act 
 
 The Annual Governance Statement will take into account any Human Rights Act 

implications. 
 
7.6. Trade Union 
 
 There are no specific implications for the Trade Unions arising from the report. 
 
7.7 Ward Implications 
 

In general the Annual Governance Statement does not focus on 
individual ward issues. 

 
 
8. Not for publication documents 
 

None. 
 

9. Options 
 

Members may –  

 Endorse the report 

 Provide comment or instruction 

 Bring forward any new governance concerns which should be reviewed, 
assessed or examined for the 2017-18 Annual Governance Statement.  

 Require further information. 
 
10. Recommendations 
 

That members – 
 

 Review the information contained in this report and the progress made in 
addressing the significant governance challenges. 

 Endorse the further actions planned. 
Page 68



 
 

 5 

 Alert officers and Members to any emerging governance concerns requiring 
review during the 2017-18 process. 

 
11. Appendices 
 

Appendix 1 - Annual Governance Statement 2016-17: Mid Year Review, 
Improvement and Progress Report. 
 

12. Background documents 
 

“Annual Governance Statement 2016-17” – report to Governance and Audit 
Committee 27thJune 2017 – Strategic Director, Corporate Services. 
 
 
 

Page 69



  Report to the Governance & Audit Committee 
 

Appendix 1 
 

 1 

Annual Governance Statement 2016-17: Mid Year Review and Progress Report as at January 2018 
 

Governance Challenge – 
AGS 2016-17 

Response reported in AGS 2016-17 
 

Update at January 2018 
 

Safeguarding 
Vulnerable Children 

A permanent manager has now been recruited to the 
Safeguarding Children Board and a new board sub group 
structure put in place that is more fit for purpose moving 
forward. Robust arrangements at the front door have been 
reviewed through Joint Area Inspection and found to be 
good. Progress on CSE has been subject to extensive 
public and political scrutiny.  However a large and growing 
youth population and  rising numbers of vulnerable young 
people coming into the system, including from outside of 
the area, mean that safeguarding children remains a 
challenge    

The BSCB structure is now embedded with a clear forward 
plan and Business Planning Group functioning as the 
executive of the Board, enabling best use to be made of 
Board time.  Self Assessment has been done of social 
care including safeguarding to drive improvement planning 
and to prepare for a likely inspection in 2018.  CSE 
continues to be subject to regular and rigorous political 
scrutiny, and there has been a partnership focus in late 
2017 on children suffering from neglect.  High levels of 
demand at the front door ( appearing to be up 20% in the 
latter two months of 2017) continues to provide a 
challenge and potential risk.  

Establishing sound 
governance structures 
pertaining to the West 
Yorkshire Combined 
Authority ensuring 
democratic 
accountability at the 
local level. 

WYCA continues to develop through its Corporate Plan, 
governance, investments and core activities. Further 
governance and organisational changes are expected to 
be brought forward and adopted at the WYCA AGM 29th 
June 2017. These include those instructed by Government 
and legislation and additional matters including 
strengthening the working arrangements of the Local 
Enterprise Partnership, business involvement and 
Combined Authority governance and business 
management. Member involvement is through key 
nomination and appointment processes, confirmed at the 
Council’s AGM. Members are also kept informed through 
WYCA and Council core communications and business 
activities. O&S  & Governance and Audit updates are 
being put in place for 2017-18. 

Bradford nominations and appointments set in place for 
2017-18. 
Cllr Susan Hinchcliffe became WYCA Chair in August 
2017. 
Governance and organisational changes have been made 
at WYCA. Phase 1 came into effect on 1st September 
2017. 
Further changes presented to WYCA meeting 14th 
December. 
First ever Bradford Joint/triple O&S session on WYCA/LEP 
took place in 2017-18.  
Bradford GAC Committee report on WYCA/LEP scheduled 
for 25th January 2018. 
WYCA/LEP in continuous and structured reporting to HM 
Government on City / Growth deal and WY Plus Transport 
Fund for delivery, performance and impact. 
 

Impact on governance 
structures arising from 

Mayoral Combined Authorities came into being following 
the Mayoral Elections on 4th May 2017. These will bring 

One Yorkshire/Leeds City Region / West Yorkshire sub-
regional negotiations remain in place between local 

P
age 70



  Report to the Governance & Audit Committee 
 

Appendix 1 
 

 2 

Governance Challenge – 
AGS 2016-17 

Response reported in AGS 2016-17 
 

Update at January 2018 
 

developing policies for 
the delivery of regional 
devolution. 

changes to local government and sub-national governance 
in the six areas (Greater Manchester, Liverpool City 
Region, West Midlands, Tees Valley, West of England and 
Cambridgeshire and Peterborough) alongside existing  
London arrangements. Bradford Council in cooperation 
with WY and Leeds City region remain in negotiation with 
Government on devolution and further powers and 
resources for place-based prosperity. DCLG have 
signalled they wish to see agreement reached by the end 
of 2017. Ensuring the effective voice and profile for 
Bradford Council, District and the City Region remains a 
priority, with specific ambitions and concerns to progress. 
This will also be shaped by the General election, the 
nature of the new Government and their policy/resource 
choices in urban and sub-national matters. 

authorities and with HM Government. 
Changes in WYCA/LEP Governance reflect journey and 
foundations for regional devolution, with evidence of Local 
Authority and WYCA joint working, delivery and 
effectiveness to secure further and future powers and 
resources. 
 
Recently launched national Industrial Strategy and Brexit 
developments both propose place-based and sub-national 
responses from HM Government. Further details expected 
in 2018. 
 
Arrangements for pan-northern progress and cooperation 
developing e.g. Transport for the North, Rail North and 
infrastructure investment progressing including Northern 
Powerhouse Rail and Bradford station/route options. 

Ensuring an effective, 
integrated system of 
health and social care 

Accountable Care Boards have been established to 
govern the development of the two Accountable Care 
Systems across Bradford District.  The Health and 
Wellbeing Board will oversee the implementation of the 
Bradford Sustainability and Transformation Plan.  
In Bradford it has been agreed that the Council  will lead a 
feasibility study into the legal options for the legal entity to 
form the Accountable Care System.  
Discussions are still ongoing regarding the form in the 
Airedale, Wharfedale and Craven area.  
Providers of services, which include the Council are 
working together within an agreed memorandum of 
understanding in Bradford.  

Work is ongoing with the focus now on working together to 
deliver services rather than in a legal form.  
A memorandum of understanding has been signed by the 
Council on the principles of how we work together. 

Implications of the 
European Union 
referendum 
 

Although Article 50 has now been triggered, the likely 
terms of the UK’s exit deal with the EU are not known. 
Therefore there is still uncertainty and lack of clarity on 
future arrangements in respect of trade, 
migration/movement of citizens, and replacement funding 

The UK’s negotiations with the EU have still not provided 
certainty in terms of the UK’s future arrangements. 
Therefore there is a lack of clarity on what impacts we are 
likely to see locally.  
The impact on EU citizens living here, and on local  

P
age 71



  Report to the Governance & Audit Committee 
 

Appendix 1 
 

 3 

Governance Challenge – 
AGS 2016-17 

Response reported in AGS 2016-17 
 

Update at January 2018 
 

streams.  Clarity on the UK’s negotiating position is further 
complicated by the snap General Election held in June 
2017. We have ensured that Bradford’s Brexit concerns 
have been heard through different channels in order to 
support effective lobbying, including at a City Region level, 
via the LGA and also through the Key Cities network. 
Officers across the organisation are continuing to monitor 
risks and opportunities as things develop and we have a 
continuing dialogue with external partners to understand 
wider impacts. A report will be taken to Corporate 
Overview and Scrutiny at such a time when detail on 
Bradford impacts and opportunities are more developed, 
as negotiations progress. 

businesses’ future trade arrangements are not known, nor 
are the impacts on the national or local economy. 
Nationally, reporters and analysts are indicating that a 
‘harder’ Brexit would result in more significant negative 
impacts. 
We continue to engage and lobby through established 
networks, including the LGA, Key Cities and at a City 
Region level, and are continuing our dialogue with local 
businesses to understand concerns. This will continue as 
negotiation talks progress. 
Corporate Overview and Scrutiny have removed the Brexit 
update from their schedule, pending further developments 
and more concrete outcomes. We will maintain a watching 
brief. 

Investigation of 
procurement 
compliance issues and 
assessment of impact. 

n/a – new challenge 

 
Cross departmental work is currently underway to 
conclude investigations to fully identify the scope of these 
issues and where procurement practice improvements are 
required. Investigations have highlighted a number of 
operational concerns and in response to these 
improvements have already been made in terms of key 
systems to accurately match compliant contracts to 
vendors and monitor contract expenditure. Further planned 
tasks include further system reviews and targeted training 
both at SLT level to improve procurement awareness and 
more detailed operationally focussed training where 
specific issues have been identified.  

Review of resourcing 
and updating of the 
Council’s management 
systems such as risk, 
procurement, income 
and health and safety,  
to ensure that the 
systems continue to be 

n/a – new challenge Human Resources has implemented through Occupational 
safety a new accident reporting system which enables 
accidents at work to be recorded on line and to ensure we 
comply with the requirements of the HSE to report  
RIDDOR accidents  within the required timescales, 
 
A new Code of Corporate Governance was adopted by the 
Council   The application of the code across the Council 

P
age 72



  Report to the Governance & Audit Committee 
 

Appendix 1 
 

 4 

Governance Challenge – 
AGS 2016-17 

Response reported in AGS 2016-17 
 

Update at January 2018 
 

effective and able to 
support an organisation 
as large and as complex 
as Bradford Council. 

will now be assessed  to see how it is implemented.  
 
The recommendations of the Well Run Council Board will 
need to be fed into the Council’s governance 
arrangements. 

Handling of objections, 
resistance and 
disagreement to the 
implementation of 
decisions that have 
already been taken, 
typically through the 
budget process.  

n/a – new challenge During recent budget rounds - after the budget 
consultation period has completed, and Budget Council 
has voted the budget - there have been high-profile 
instances of objections to decisions, at the point of 
implementation.  Examples include: suppliers (especially 
not-for-profit organisations) making representations about 
contract reductions; judicial review of the decision about 
care charges; petitions to Council (eg Foster carer fees); 
impending closure of facilities if, for example, community 
asset transfers have not been agreed; tenants of buildings, 
after the end of rates reductions and/ or rent subsidies, 
objecting if applications for Area Committee funding were 
unsuccessful.  The current round of consultation on 
Prevention and Early Help reform is likely to generate 
similar levels of objection.   On occasion, resistance to 
change has internal roots, though exceptionally rather than 
the rule; or may come from Bradford being unable to 
convince other  Councils of a regional-wide change.  
Objections require senior management and elected 
member attention. Although they can be regarded as a 
routine part of local government life, they undermine the 
legitimacy of original decisions, and their handling route is 
not always initially clear. In other cases – such as the 
introduction of alternate weekly waste collection which has 
affected all households in the district, changes are 
implemented with less vocal objection. 

 
 

P
age 73



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	5 REGULATION OF INVESTIGATORY POWERS ACT 2000 (RIPA) - LEVEL OF USE (QUARTERLY REVIEW)
	6 WEST YORKSHIRE COMBINED AUTHORITY (WYCA) AND LEEDS CITY REGION ENTERPRISE PARTNERSHIP (LEP): UPDATE REPORT
	Appendix 2.1 to Document "V"
	Appendix 2.2 to Document V
	Appendix 2.3 to Document "V"

	7 MINUTES OF WEST YORKSHIRE PENSION FUND (WYPF) PENSION BOARD HELD ON 8 NOVEMBER 2017
	Document "W"

	8 BUDGET SAVINGS TO BE ACHIEVED IN LEGAL AND DEMOCRATIC SERVICES IN 2018/19 - PROPOSED CHANGES TO THE CONSTITUTION
	9 EXTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT
	Document "Y"

	10 CERTIFICATION OF GRANTS REPORT 2016/17
	Document "Z"

	11 ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2016/17

